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Chartered Accountants

To the Board of Directors of Clean Renewable Power (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd (“CRPMPL”)
Report on Special Purpose Combined Financial Statement of Restricted Group
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying special purpose combined financial statement of Restricted Group
which consist of Clean Renewable Power (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd (“the Company”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hero Futures Energies Asia Pte Ltd (the “Parent’) and certain entities under common
control of the Parent as listed in note 1 to the special purpose combined financial statement (collectively
known as “the Restricted Group”), which comprise the special purpose combined Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the special purpose combined statements of Profit and Loss
including special purpose other comprehensive income, the special purpose combined Cash Flow
Statements and the special purpose combined Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March
31,2022 and March 31, 2021 and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (together hereinafter referred to as “special purpose combined financial statement”). These
special purpose combined financial statement have been prepared in accordance with the basis of
preparation as set out in note 2 to the special purpose combined financial statement.

In our opinion, the accompanying special purpose combined financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects, in accordance with
the basis of preparation described in Note 2 to these special purpose combined financial statement.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) as applicable in India. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Restricted Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in India,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction in distribution and Use

We draw attention to the Note 1 and 2 of the accompanying special purpose combined financial
statement, which describes that the Restricted Group has not formed a separate legal group of entities
during the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 and which also describes the basis of
preparation, including the approach to and the purpose for preparing them. Consequently, the
Restricted Group's special purpose combined financial statement may not necessarily be indicative of
the financial performances and financial position of the Restricted Group that would have occurred if
it had operated as a separate group of entities during the periods presented and as a result, these
financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. The special purpose combined financial
statement has been prepared solely to comply with financial reporting requirements under the
indenture governing the 4.25% senior secured notes. This report is not to be used, referred to or
distributed for any other purpose.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of these special purpose combined financial statement in
accordance with the basis of preparation as set out in note 2 to the special purpose combined financial

statement and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

,V_JL-L"\ it

per Pravin Tulsyan

Partner

Membership Number: 108044
UDIN; 22108044ANQTYP7168
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: July 26, 2022




Restricted Group
Special Purpose Combined Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees (in million), unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I. ASSETS
Mon-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment a 27,927.78 2889375
{b) Capital work-in-progress 4 - 4284
{c) Other intangible assets 5 12165 12963
(d) Financial assets
Other financial assets 9 1,369.38 1,049.23
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 30 4 11.77 500.91
(f) Other non-current assets 10 1 93.51 200.86
{g) Non-current tax assets (net) i1 58.54 8272
30,082.63 30,899.94
Current assets
{a) Inventories 12 1338 4.30
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables & 2.731.93 2 B57.27
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1.,439.18 4 ,723.96
(iii) Other bank balances 8 8 .10 22,592.89
(v} Other financial assets 9 1,499,090 507.03
{c) Other current assets 10 165.54 1:38.78
5 ,857.22 30,624.24
Total assets 3 5,939.85 61,524.18
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 13 3 .,688.28 3 .,634.10
(b) Other equity 14 ( 1,539.69) {728.41)
2 ,148.58 2 ,805.88
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilities
(&} Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 15 28,692.37 29,197 .86
{b) Provisions 19 4671 58.80
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (net} 30 947.64 570.25
{d} Other non-current liabilities 18 §96.62 581.84
30,822.29 3 0,408.75
Current liabilities
(&) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 15 1,903.66 2417368
(i} Trade payables 16
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.46 4.37
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 235.54 1.016.48
enlarpgsss financial liabilities 17 681.16 293458
(b) Other current liabilities 18 137.16 7797
(¢} Provisions 19 0.9 2 .88
{d}) Liabilities for current tax (net) 20 9 .08 -
2,968.97 28,209.74
Total equity and liabilities 3 5,939.85 6 1,524.18
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Special Purpose Combined financial statements

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number; 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 108044

Place: Gurugram
Date : July 26, 2022

For and on behalf of the Restricted Group
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Restricted Group
Special Purpose Combined Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees {in million), unless otherwise stated)

| Particulars Note As at As at
| March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| Revenue from contract with customers 21 497869 As at 475003
1I  Other income 22 281.70 22049
Il Total income {1+ } 5,260.39 4,980.42
IV Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 136 58 101:63
Finance costs 24 2.665.57 3,409 89
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 1,077.25 1,400 81
Impairment of assels 254 - 58.96
Other expenses 26 956,96 1,113.38
Total expenses. 4,836.37 6,084.67
V' Profiti{Loss) before tax (1l-IV) 424.02 (1,104.25)
VI Tax expense: 27
a) Currant tax 30143 10.07
b) Adjusiment in respect of current tax relating to earher years (0.54) a.10
b) Deferred Tax charge 400.90 (169.52)
Total tax expense 701.79 {159.35)
! Vi Profit{Loss) for the year (V-VI) (277.77) {944.90)

Vil Other comprehensive income

Other Comprehensive Income that may be reclassified subseq Iy to t of 28
profit and loss in subsequent years:
Exchange Difference on translation of foreign operations (382 153
Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges inet of fax) (485.93) -
Net comprehensive income that will be reclassified to statement of profit or loss in
subsequent years (485.11) 1.53
| Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 28
in subsequent years:
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefil plans 804 0g2
Income tax effect (2.25) {010}
Net other comprehensive income! {expense) not to be reclassified to statement of
profit and loss in subsequent years 579 0.52
: Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (479.32) 2.05
X Total prehensive i ltexpense) of the year, net of tax (VII+VII) {757.09) {942.85)
Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of lhese Special Purpose Combined financial statements
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Restricted Group
Chartered Accountants i B RGE
Firm's Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 ; y

Benjamin Paul Fraser

Neeraj Nawaz
Director Director

Place: Gurugram Place. Mauritius Place: London
Date : July 26, 2022 Date . July 26, 2022 Date: July 26, 2022




ZZOz ‘9z Anr ‘ejeg
uopua 2eld

Jopaig

lageig ned unuelusg

ZZ0z ‘gz Aor - sieq

SMRUNEY [80E|4

jopang

Tomerd lEdougy

ZZOT ‘gz Anr S =ieqg
wieibnuing aoed4

S0000E3/AE00L0E JsqunN uolesib
SIUBJUNGDOY paus:

d771 00 § 10qiieg "4'g Jog

Bjep usns Jo Uodsa Ino Jad sy

sjuawsiEls [Bauell pauiquo] asoding |eieds asay) jo ped |eifieiu ue wio) sejou Buriuedwesoe syl

Z

ssiijod Bununcooe Juemyubis pue Juswainsesw 'uonesedaid jo siseg

‘dnog pelisay ay) Jo esodind sy Joy Anba sayo jefis) uesaidal ALEssensU JoU S80P puE a1ep Buipodal ay) jo se dnoug pajoulsay Jo saliua paynuaep: jo Alinba Jayio o nowe siefzufife sy sjuasaidss fnba ssuyin,

(69665 1)

[EEEIEKA] [CEA] 169°29Z] SZ'8LE] ¥9'L 9 00°E8 L LE'ESY > 08'l52 ZZ0Z '}£ Yddep je sy
= & 5 = = = = - - 8/858y] UoIE[SUBI] foualing ubjsio] o) pelajsuE)) ssa
[ETEE 7 5 z 81 'vg] & = - - [ENdED) GIELS 0] peLssUEs 550
sBulles
= BSE0C = % = & = = 85'602) ) pauielas o] anasay uchdwepay sinusgag Woy Jajsuen $sa]
280 E 80 R Z - - - - [%E} 10 1aU] Jeaf sy} BuLnp sUCHPpY PO
(51 08%) 6.5 = (69°252) [FEEE = - - - - (%2} J0 18U] (o5U50X@]/81U00Ul SM5UBURIAIGD 1BLI() - PPY
PR VES] [FFE ] X 4 * - - - - - TESA BU} 10} 140ld POV
[ 9zvs552) (99°€) % = 2851 00°¢8L [ 85'602 08152 20T L€ Youep 18 sy
()] = = = = E [EEEN = B - “BBIELD ¥e] palsjaq) s8]
= = L20°0} - & 00 = - - - BAI8581 UDNE|SUR)) Aoualing Ube104 0] pallajsUEl s8a]
WELT = = . E TPE 1) - - - - |BlidEd 8IS O) peLlajsued) 5887
T B - - - - z = = logel SesUadxg ar8s] BIeYg S50
ZEEBS = 09'L A u 8l '¥5 ¥l ops * = OF'L9Z 1eaf auyy Buunp sUCIPPY BRY
250 50 - & = = - - o {x2) jo jau) asuadxa ansusyaidwod BUID DoV
{08 ppal {06 vyl = [ - - - - - - - Jeak alj) Joj 5507 PRy
(9¥08z) (88’6091} (61'5] - = L6'29 L8865 LEE9r 85602 = 0202 ' dy jESY
sainmuagep
anlasay m.__camax antasay ‘slguisauos aniasay
sBuuez i 1 BuilBpay Buibpey uopnguUIuon Aposinduwon uondilapay winiwasd
Aunba [ejo) paulejay Asusung ublatog 103500 MOl ysen |epdeg pawaag | jo usuodwos Ainb3 |enden pajseauj aunjuagag SalLINDRS
ssapjoy Ayinba o} siqenguny
MBS 190§
‘dnoug pasey syl jo (endes aupys ehs) wssaidal ALBsS305U JoU saop pus pouad sansedsal 8L je se dnolg pajalsey auy) jo ped Buiwio sspnus jo [eydes aleys jo unowe sieBebbe auy sussaidar jepdes aleus .,
gz'8g9'c 0b6'sZL'E9E ZZ0Z 'LE ydep 1 sy
BLPS BSVPEEL dead sy Buunp [endes aieys Aunbg v sebueys
0}'FES'E L5F'96E'29E LZ0Z ‘L€ Yyalep je sy
FELOG LZB'LI0'09 sead sy Buunp |eydes sieyg Aunbg u sebueun
9L'ZE0'C 0E§°'8.E°20€ 0202 ‘L0 1udy Je sy
junolwy mﬂww“wwaw__wzcu pied £lin} pue paquosqns ‘pansst Yoea 0} sy Jo saleys Aynba

Jendes aseyg fyinbg 'y

ZZ0Z ‘1€ Yole} Papua Jeak Joj SSOT PUE JLOId JO JUSWSIEIS paulg

(PaiBis @sIMIBL)0 SSa[UN TUOI||IU U] S88dny UBIpU]| Ul 818 SJUNGLUE [y]

) ssoding [eedg
dnosgy pajoLsay




| ¥

Restricted Group

ial Purpose Combined Stat of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2022
{AII amounts are in Indian Rupees (in million), uniess otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the Year ended For the Year ended March

I. Cash flow from cperating activities
Profiti{Loss) before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amartization expense
Imparrment of assels

Bajances written off

Amortisation of government grant
Amortisation of daferred revenue

Liability no fonger requirgd written back
Unwiriding of discount on deposits

Finance costs

Finance income

Provision for doubiful receivabies and advances
Exchange fluctuation (gain}

Lease rent concession {fefer note 34)

Gain on termination of leases (refer note 34)
Operation and maintenance reserve aceretion

Operating profit before werking capital changes
Change in working capital;

(Increase) in trade and other recevables
{Increase) in inventories

(Dacrease) Increase in trade and other payables
{Increase) in ciher financal assets

{increase} in ofher assets

(Decrease) Increase in other fnancial liabiliies
Increasel (Decrease) in other Habilities

Change in working capital

Cash generated from operatiens

Less : Taxes paidl (net of refunds)

MNet cash flow from operating activities

If. Cash flow from investing activities:

March 31, 2022 31, 2021
424,02 {1,104.25)
1,077.25 1,400 81
2 58.96
- 308
{5.73) (24.72)
(26.79) -
(13.12) (21.05)
(2.50) (354}
2,665 57 3,409.89
(162 .18} 112173}
102.82 4306
1.72 -
. (1.44)
- (3.80)
(31.33) (20.38)
3,605.73 4,716.91
4,029.75 3,614.66
(74.986) (705 32)
(8.08) {4°30)
{766.70) 24241
{355.30) (124 97)
{116.43) (87.18)
(758,40} 930,18
518.13 193
(1,562.44) 248 88
2,467.31 3,863.54
{265.38) (32.32)
2,201.93 3,831.22

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (108 50) {35.84)
Fixad deposits with banks {net) 137 .45 9.89
Balance with banks {net) 22,210.20 122,682 48)
Loan to related parties (net) {833.02) -
Interest received 10,70 35.09
Proceeds from government grant 2530 -
Net cash generated from/ {used in) investing activities: 21,410,586 {22,673.44)
Iil. Met cash flow from financing activities®:
Proceeds from equity share capilal (net of share issue expense) - 857.80
Proceeds from capital confribution - 54,74
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites - {12.13}
Issue of Compulserly Cc ible C lative Debent - 1.349.60
Net (repayment)/ proceeds of working capital facilities 41.50
Repayment of borrowings (24, 104 52) 12,908.01)
Proceeds from borrowings 32.84 27.115.01
Intgrest paid on borrowings {2,248, 461 (3,735 18)
Net cash g ted in) fi ing activities (27,320.14) 22.762.33
Net change in Cash & cash equivalents {i+1+lll) (3,707 65) 3920011
Cash and cash equivalents as sl the beginning of the year (a) 457245 70057
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (b) 32.18 41.23
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (c) 839,62 4.579.45
Net change in Cash & cash equivalents {c+b-a) (3.707.65) 3,820.11
Basis of praparation, measurement and significant accounling policies 2
Note:
The Cash Flow stalement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7" Statement of Cash Flows™
*Refer note 41 for change in financing activities disclosure pursuant to amendmant to Ind AST.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Special Purpose Combined financial statements
Asperourreportof evendate
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Partny
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Dale ; July 26,2022

Meeraj Nawaz

Dirgctar

Flace: Maurius
Date © July 26, 2022

Beniamin Paul Fraser
Director

Place: London
Data; July 26, 2022



Restricted Group
Notes to Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1

1.1

21

Corporate Information

Clean Renewable Power (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd ("the CRPMPL" or "the Company") was incorporated on March 27, 2018 as a Private entity limited by shares incorporated under laws of
Maurtius and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hero Future Energies Asia Pte Ltd ("the Parant’). The Company and certain subsidiaries of Hero Future Energies Private Limited,
collectively known as “Restricted Group” (as listed below), carry out business activities relating to generation of electricity through nen-conventional renewable enargy sources
engaged in the ownership, maintenance, management of solar and wind power plants and generation of solar and wind energy based on long-term contracts {power purchase
agreements or “PPA") with Indian government entities and commercial customers.

During the previous year, the Company had issued 4 25% Senior secured notes to institutional investors and listed on Singapare Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST). Net
proceeds of this offering has been used to subscribe the onshore debt {rupes dencminated external commercial borrowings in the form of bonds) issued by Indian entities of
Restricted Group to replace existing Rupee and external debt of Restricted Group entities. Restricted Group enfities are directly or indirectly under commen control of the parent.
CRPMPL and Indian entities of Restricted Group have been considered as "Restricted Group" for the purpose of financlal reporting.

The Restricted Group entities which are under the common control of the Parent comprises the following entities:

Entities Holding Company % Holding Country of incorporation
Clean Renewable Power {(Mauritius) Ple, Lid Hero Future Energies Asia Ple. Ltd 100% Mauritius

Clean Wind Power (Rallam) Private Limited Hero Wind Energy Private Limited 100% India

Clean Wind Power {Satara) Private Limited Hero Wind Energy Private Limited 100% India

Clean Wind Power (Piploda) Private Limited Hero Wind Eneray Private Limited 100% India

Clean Wind Power (Bableshwar) Private Limited Hero Wind Eneray Private Limited 100% India

Bhilwara Green Energy Limited Hero Wind Energy Private Limited 100% India

Clean Solar Power (Dhar) Private Limited Hero Solar Energy Private Limited 100% India

Raikot (Gujarat) Solar Energy Private Limited Hero Selar Energy Private Limited 100% India

Clean Solar Power {Gulbarga) Private Limited Hero Sclar Energy Private Limited 100% India

The Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on July 26, 2022,

Purpose of Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements

These are Special Purpose Combined financial statements, which have been prepared for the purpase of submission to the bond holders for complying with reporting reguiremeants
under the indenture governing the 4.25% Senior secured notes These $Special Purpose Combined financial statements prasented herein reflect the Restricted Group's results of
operations, assets and liabilities and cash flows for the year presented. The basis of preparation and significant accounting pelicies used in preparation of these special purpose
Combined financial statements are set outin note 2 1 and 2.2 below.

Basis of Preparation, Measurement and Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation:

The Special Purpose Combined finanicial statements of the Restricted Group have been prepared in accordance with recognition and msasurement principles laid down by the Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) (except Ind AS — 33 on Earnings Per Share) prescribed under section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 3 of the Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment Rules), 2016, issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India and the guidance note on Combined and Carve-out Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).

Management of the entity has prepared the Special Purpose Combined financial statements, which comprise the Special Purpose combined Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and
March 31, 2021, the Special Purpose Combined Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Special Purpase Combined Statement of Cash Flows and
Special Purpose Combined Statement of Changes in Equity for the year endad March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, a summary of the significant accounting policies and aother
explanatory information,

The iterns in the Special Purpose Combined financial statements have been classifisd considering the principles under Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements.

The Special Purpose Combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assels and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financia! instruments)

As per the Guidance Note on Combined and Carve Out Financial Statements, the procedure for preparing Special Purpose Combined financial statements of the combining entities is
the same as that for Special Purpose Combined financial statements as per the applicable Indian Accounting Standards. Accordingly, when Combined financial statements are
prepared, intra-group transactions and profits or losses are eliminated. All the inter group transactions are undertaken on Arms Lengths basis. There is no allocation of expenses
within the Restricted Group. The information presented in the Special Purpose Combined financial statements of the Restricted Group may not be representative of the position which
might have existed if the combining businesses had been a stand-alone business

Share capital and reserves disclosed in the Special Purpose Combined financial statements is not the legal capital and reserves of the Restricted Group and is the aggregation of the
share capilal and reserves of the individual combining entities. Income taxes are arrived at by aggregation of the tax expenses actually incurred by the combining businesses, after
considering the tax effects of any adjustments which is in accordance with the Guidance Note on Combined and Carve-Out Financial Statements issued by the ICAL

Accordingly, the procedures followed for the preparation of the Special Purpose Combined financial statements:

(a) Combined like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expanses and cash flows of the combining entities.

(b) Eliminated in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, incorme, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Restricted Group (profits or losses
resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assats, such as fixed assets, are eliminated in full), any.




Restricted Group
Motes to Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

22

2.3

a)

b

These Special Purpose Combined financial statements may not be necessarly indicative of the financial performance, financial position-and cash flows of the Restricted Group that
would have ocourred if it had operated as a separate Group of entities during the year presentad of the Restricted Group's future parformance.

The Special Purpose Combined financial statements include the operation of entities in the Restricted Group, as if they had been managed together for the year presented.

The preparation of financial information in conformity with Ind AS requires the use of certain criical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Restricted Group's accounting policies.

All intracompany transactions and balances within the Restricted Group have been eliminated in full. Transactions that have taken place with other related parties not forming part of
the Restricted Group have been disclosed in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Parly Disclosures.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped, reclassified whenever necessary to correspond with current year classification/disciosure in accordance with revised schedule 111 of
Compamies Act, 2013

Basis of Combination:
The procedure for preparing Special Purposs Combined Financial Statements of the Restricted Group are stated below.

a) The Special Purpose Combined financial statements have been prepared using the principles of conselidation as per Ind AS 110-Consolidated Financial Statements, to the
extent applicable.

b) The financial statements of all the companies were Gombined by combining/adding like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows,

¢} Intragroup assets and liabilities, equily, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Restricled Group (profits or losses resulting from
intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory) are eliminated in full

d) The tax expense involves aggregation of the tax expenses actually incumed by the combining businesses in accordance with para 33 of the Guidance Note on Combined and
Carve-Out Financial Statements

g) Carrying amounts pertaining to all subsidianes are Combined as they reflect in Special Purpose Combined financial statements of Hero Future Energies Private Limited in
accordance with para 16 of the Guidance Note on Combined and Carve-out Financial Statements

f) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Combined line by fine and only transactions and balances between the companies that form part of Restricted
Group have been eliminated.

g) Share capital represents the aggregate amount of share capital of entities forming part of the Restricted Group as at the respective date and does not necessarily reprasent legal
share capital of the Restricted Group.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

Assats and liabilties in the balance sheet are presented based on current! non-current classification

Assets:

An assei is treated as current when itis:

a) Expected to be realised or infended to be sold or coensumed in normal operating cycle

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading

) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used to seftle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other assets are classified as non-curment,

Liabilities:

A liability is current when:

{a} It is expected fo be settled in normal operating cycle

(b} It is held primarily for the purpese of trading

(¢} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve menths after the reporting period

The terms of the fiability that could, at the option of the counterparty, rasult in its settiement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. Al other labilities are
classified as non-current.

Diferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-currant assets and abilities,

Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The entifies in the Restricted
Group has identified twalve months as its operating cycle

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the fiabilify takes place either:

« I the principal market for the asset or liabifity, or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markel for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the respective Restricted Group entity

The fair value of an asset or a fiability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

The falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account & market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the assat in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market pariicipant that would use the assef in its highest and best use.
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c)

The Restricted Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categarised within the fair value hierarchy, descrbed as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whols:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for [dentical assets or labilities
* Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremert is directly or indirectly observable
* Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unohservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Restricted Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy. (Refer note 36 X

The Restricted Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Cross currency
interest rate swaps are valued at mark to market which uses valuation techniques and employs the use of market observable inputs. The valuation technique incorporate various
Inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the currency, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the
underfying instrument

Al each reporting date, the management of the Restricted Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed
as per the accounting policies of the Restricted Group,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Restricted Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest lavet input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

This note summarises the accounting policy for determination of fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes as following:

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Refer note 36)
+ Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Refer note 35)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the electricity Is transferred o the customer at the meter reading paint at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange of the electricity transferred,

Generation based Incentive

Generation based incentive ('GBY') is recognized with reference to "Extension scheme for GBI for Grid connected Wind Power Projects dated September 4, 2013 whereby GBI would
be available for wind turbines commissioned on or after April 1, 2012, Under the scheme, GBI will be provided to wind electricity producers @ Rs 0.50 per unit of electricity fed into
‘the grid for a year not less than 4 years and a maximum year of 10 years with a cap of Rs, 100 lacs per MW. GBI is recognized on the basis of supply of units generated by the
Restricted Group entities to the state electricity board from the eligible project in accordance with the scheme of the "Generation Based Incentive (GBI)"

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income is recognised when the night of the Restricted Group to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprahensive income, interest income |s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR)
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter year, where appropriate, to the
gress carrying amount of the financial asset When calculating the effective interest rate, the Restricted Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension. call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss,

Income from sale of credit
Income from sale of carbon credits is recognised at the time of ransfer of credils to customers.

Application of interpretation for Service Concession Arrangements (SCA):

Management has assessed applicability of Appendix C of Indian Accounting Standards 115 Service Concession Amrangsments for the power purchase agreement which the
Restricted Group entities have entered into. In assessing the applicability of SCA, the management has exercised significant judgement in refation to the underlying ownership of the
assets, the attached risks and rewards of ownership, residual interest and the fact that secondary lease periods are not at nominal lease rentals etc, in concluding that the
arrangements don't meet the criteria for recognition as service concession arangements,

Contract balances:

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Restricted Group's right to an amount of consideration that is uncanditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (n) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables include unbilled revenus represents services rendered by the Restricted Group but not invoiced as &t balance sheet date as the right to consideration Is
unconditional and only passage of time is required befors payment of that consideration is due.
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d)

e}

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentational currency

The Restricted Group’s Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs ) which is also the functional currency of all the entities in the Restricted
Group except for CRPMPL . Functional Curency of the Company is US Dallars (US$). Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which a Restricted
Group operates and is normally the currency in which the Restricted Group primarily generates and expends cash, All the financial information presented in Rs million except where
otherwise stated.

(i} Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiafy recorded by the Restricted Group at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreign cuencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reperting date, Differences arising on
sattlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retransiated to the functional currency at the exchange rale at the date that
the fair value was determined Non-monelary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction

(iiy Foreign Operations

The functional currency of the Company is the United States Dollar ("US$") and presentation currency for Special Purpose combined financial statement of Restricted Group is Indian
rupees (*INR"). The Restricted Group entities which are having operations in India, use INR as the functional currency. The financial staternents of the Company are translated into
INR using the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date for assets and liabilities, historical exchange rates for equity transactions and average exchange rate for the year for
income and expense items. Transiation gains and losses are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss as a component of other equity.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authonties. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to tems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity) Management periodically
avaluates positions taken in the tax returs with respect to situations in which applicable tax reguiations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off these.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabiities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the reparting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences , excepl

- VWhen the deferred tax liability arises from the initlal recognition of goodwill or an asset or fiability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- In respect of taxable temporary differences asseciated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeabla future

Defarred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temparary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused lax losses Deferred tax assets ara recognised to
the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused {ax losses
can be utiised, except:

. \When the defered tax assel refaling to the deductible temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will raverse in the foresesable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temparary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of defered tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaitable to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset lo be utilised Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become

_probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

In the situations where one or more entities are entitied to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacled in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where
thiey operate, no deferred tax {asset or liabilty) 1s recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax haliday year, to the extent the concerned entity's gross
total income is subject to the deduction duning the tax holiday year. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday year is recognized in the year
in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Restricted Group restricts recagnition of deferred tax assels to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized, For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse
first.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the hability is settied, based on tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting dale.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 1S recognised outside profit or loss {ether in OCI or equity). Deferred tax items are recegnised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Daferred tax assets and daferred tax liabiities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity.

Minimurm Altermnate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of unused tax credit which can be carried farward and utilised when the Restricted Group will
pay normal income tax dunng the specified year. Dieferred tax assets on such tax credit is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the unused tax credit can be utilised in the
specified future year based on the intemal projections of the Management. The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority s inciuded as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet
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hj

In situations where Restncted Group is entitied to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961, enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
tempaorary differences which reverse during the tax holiday year. Deferred taxes in respect of tempoaracy differences which reverse after the tax holiday year are recognized in the year
in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Restricted Group restrict the recognition of defered tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred lax assets can be realized,

Government grant

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be compiled with. \When the grant related to an
expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the years that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant related to
an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset

When grants of non-monetary assets is received, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments

The grants related to an expense item is presented as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Thus, sale of emission reduction certificates have been recognised as other
income,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any Plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are mel. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Restricted Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection Is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacemant if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the itern of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Restricted Group and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting
derecognised, The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

Accerdingly, the Restricted Group adjusts exchange differences arising on translation/settiement of long-term foreign currency monetary items recogrised in the financial statements
for the year ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting year perlaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of the asset and
depreciates the same over the remaining life of the assel. In accordance with MCA circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange differences adjusted to the cost of fixed assets are total
differences, arising on long-term foreign currency maonetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the year. In other words, the Restricted Group do not
differentiate between exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange
difference.

Derecognition

An itam of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ecenomic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on derecegnition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognised. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference betwsen the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized,

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cast. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following Initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Depreciation/amortization of fixed assets

Based on expert legal opinion, management is of the view that rates notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) or State Electricity Regulatory Commission
(SERC) are not applicable to the Restricted Group and accardingly the management is providing Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment based on useful life given in Part (a)
and (c) of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 and is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful
lives as given below, the management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the year over which the assets are likely to be used,

|Assets Useful Life

{in years)

Plant & Equipments (including Wind Turbine Generator, Solar plants and | 30-35
transmission lines*)

Building & Substation 10-35
|Computers and Data processing Machines 3-5

* Based on intemnal technical assessment, the Management believes that the useful Ife of Wind Turbine Generator, solar plants and transmissien lines is 30-35 years as given above,
which best represents the year over which Management expects the use of assets. Hence the useful life of these assals is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of
schedule |l of Companies Act, 2013

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life on straight line basis and assessed for impairment whenaver there is an indication that the intangible
assel may be impaired. The amortization year and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finile life zre reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year.

Type of asset Useful lives (in

vears!
Custorner Centracts acquired during business combination 30-35
Computer Software 35

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit lavel. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whather the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If net, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.
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During the year, as a part of its annual exercise of review of estimates, the Restricted Group have conducted an operational efficiency review of its wind power plants and solar power
plants respectively, classified under category property, plant and equipment. Basis the study and technical advice, with effect from April 1. 2021, the expected useful life of wind
power plants and solar power plants has been revised from 25 years to 30 years and 35 years respectively. As a result of change, depreciation expenses recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss during the current year is decreased as compared {0 previous year. The effect of above changes on actual and expected depreciation expense was as follows.

[3 s Amounts

|Financial year 2022-23 32077
Financial year 2023-24 32077
Financial year 2024-25 32077
Financial year 2025-26 32077
Finangial year 2026-27 32077
Financial year 2027-28 320,77

Actual effect in current year
Financial year 2021-22 320,77

Expected amount of effect in future years

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset thal necessarily takes a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they occur, Bomowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differances to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

Leases
At inception of a contract, the Restricted Group assesses whether & contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Right-of-use assets

The Restricted Group recognises right-of-use assets ‘at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured ai cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiiities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amournit of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets (leasehold land and leasehold buiiding) are depraciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

If ownership of the leased asset transfers lo the Restricted Group al the end of the lease term or the cost reflacts the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset, The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting palicies in section (p) Impairment of non-financial assets

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Restricted Group recognises lease liabilites measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
loase payments include fixed payments (ncluding insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase apticn reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Restricted Group and payments of penalties for lerminaling a lease, If the lease term refiects the Restricied Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

I calculating the present value of lease payments, the Restricted Group uses the incremental borrawing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabiities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabiilies is remeasured If there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
the assessment to purchase the underlying asset

Short-termn leases and leases of low valug

The Restricted Group applies the short-lerm lease recogniion examption to its short-term leases (e, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less fram the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognifion exemption fo leases that are considered of low valug. Lease
payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense as they are incurred.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Restricted Group has no obligation, cther than the contribution payable to the provident furd.
The Restricted Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund schemie as an expense, when an employee renders the related service [f the contribution payable to the
scheme for senvice received before the balance sheet date exceeds the coniribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme s recognized as a liabllity after deducting the
contribution afready paid. If the contribution aiready paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance shest date, then excess is recognized as an asset to
the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan
The Restricted Group has an obligation towards gratuity. a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees The plan provides for & lump sum payment to vested
employees al retirement, death while in employmer it or on termi n of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting

occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Restricted Group accounts for the hiability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent actuarial valuation
report using the projected unit credit methed

Re-measurements, compnsing actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes o the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest and if
applicable), is refiected immediately in Other Comprenensive Income in the statement of profit and loss. All other expenses related to defined beneft plans are recognised in
statement of profit and loss as employes benefit expenses. Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified o statement of profit and loss
hence it is treated as part of retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity Gains or losses on the curtailment or setilement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when
the curtailment or setilement occurs. Curtailiment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

As per the Restricted Group's policy, eligble leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to fulure years to either be utiised during the service, or encashed.
Encashment can be made during the service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation by employee and upon death of employee, The scale of benefits Is
determined based on the seniority and the respective employee'’s salary. The Restricted Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the year in which the
employee renders the services that increase this enfitlement. The obfigation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
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m)  Provisions
General

n}

o)

Provisions are recognised when the Restricted Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutfiow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation, When the Restricted Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a pravision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liagility. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning costs:

Liability for decommissioning costs is provided for those lease arrangements where the Restricted Group has a binding obligation at the end of the lease year to restore the leased
premises In a condition similar to inception of lease. Provision for decommissioning costs is provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using discounted
cash flows and is recognised as part of the cost of that particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income statement as a finance cost, The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted
as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the assat

Inventory
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurmed in bringing the inventories te their present location and

condition. Cost is determined on Weighted average basis.

Net reali value is the  selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument for another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable fo the
acquisition of the financial asset Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation er convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised cn the trade date, e, the date that the Restricted Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Syt

q ament

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-Debt instruments at amortised cost

-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The category applies to the Restricted Group’s trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits and other loans and advances, etc,

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

() The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

(i) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pncipal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
Inta account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR: The accretion of EIR is recorded as an income or expense in statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL}
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Restricted Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOGC! eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch'). The Restricted Group has not designated any debt
instrument as at FYTPL,

Debt instruments includad within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Restricted Group of similar financial assets) is pimarily derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have explred, or

- The respective Restricted Group has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed the obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; And

- Either the Restricted Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, but have transferred control of the asset.

When the Restricted Group have transferred their rights to recelve cash flows from an asset or have entered into a pass-hrough arrangement, they evaluate if and to what extent
they have retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When they have neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferrad control
of the asset, the Restricted Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the continuing invalvement of Restricted Group. In that case, the Restricted Group
also recognise an associated liability. The transferred asset and the assaciated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Restricted Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Restricted Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Resticted Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on all the financial assets and

credit risk exposure.
The Restricted Group follows 'simpiified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Restricted Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
sach reporting date, right fram initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Restricted Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit nisk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL 1s used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL is used. If in a subsequent year, cradit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no fonger a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impalrment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results fram default events that are possible within 12 moriths after the reparting date.

ECL impairment loss aliowanee (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as incomelexpense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L)

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

On the date of issuance Financial Instruments with conversion feature are evaluated for equity, liability and compound instrurment classification as per the contractual terms. Basis the
assessment if considered appropriate, consideration recelved is allocated to different components per the applicable accounting guidance. If there is any embedded derivative same
has been accounted as per guidance.

All firiancial liabilties are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities of the Restricted Group include trade and other payables, derivative financial instruments, loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, financial guarantee
contracts and denvative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabfities depends on their classification as discussed below -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabiiities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit o
loss. Financial liabilities are classified as heid for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near lerm. This category also includes derivalive financial
instruments entered into by the Restricted Group that are not designated as hedging instruments In hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Finaricial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfiad. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in oun credit risk are recognized in OCL These gainsiloss are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Resticted Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The Restricted Group has not designated any financial Eabillty as at fair value through profit and loss.

Trade Payabies

These amounts represents liabilties for goods and services provided to the Restricled Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 60 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabllities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting peried, They
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-beanng leans and borrowings are subseqguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and lnsses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees ar costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss This category generally applies to borrewings,

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liabilty. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Restricted Group recognise debt modifications agreed with lenders to restructure their existing debt chligations, Such modifications are done to take advantage of falling interest
rates by canceiling the exposure to high interest fixed rate debt, pay a fee or penally cn cancellation and replace it with debt at & lower interest rate (exchange of old debt with new
debt). The qualitative factors considered to be relevant for modified financial lianilities include, but are not limited to, the currency that the debt instrument is dencminated in, the
interest rate (that is fixed varsus floating rate). conversion features attached o the instrument and changes in coveranls. The accounting treatment is determined depending on
whether modifications or exchange of debt instruments represent a settlement of the original debt or merely a renegotiation of that debt. The exchange of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original fimancial liability and the recagnition of a new financial liability,

Compound Financlal Instruments

A compound financial instrument is a non-derivative financial instrument that, from the issuer's perspective, contains both a liability and an equity component.

0On issuance of the mandatorily redeemable preference shares with dividends paid at the issuer’s discretion, the fair value of the liability component is measured by determining the
net present value of redemption amount, discounted at the market rate of interest prevailing at the time of issue. This amount is classified as a borrowing measured at amortised cost
until it is extinguished on redemption. The equity compenent is assigned the residual ameunt after deducting from the fair value of the instrument as a whole, the amount separately
determinad for the liability component.

After initial measurerment, on the liability component, interest is accrued using EIR and is recognised in the Special Purpose Combined statement of profit and loss as finance costs,
Any dividends paid are related to the equiy component and are recognised directly in the equity,

Transection costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity comporients of the instrument in proportion to the allocation of
procesds,
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Reaclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Restricted Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financlal assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing
those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent

Offsetting of I Instr
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Special Purpose Combined finaricial statement if thera is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basls, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Restricted Group assesses, at each reporting date, whather there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Restricted Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual assef, uniess the asset doss not generate cash inflows that are largely
Independent of those from other assels or Restricted Groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered
Impaired and is written down to its recaverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other avaitable fair
value indicators,

The Restricted Group bases its impairment calcuiation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Restricted Group's CGUs to
which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a year of five years. For longer years, a long-term growth rate is calcutated and
applied to project future cash flows afler the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond vears covered by the most recent budgetsiforecasts, the Restricted Group
extrapolates cash fiow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries; er country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used,

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment cn inventaries, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the
revaluation surplus taken to GCI. For such propertias, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Restricted Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only i
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recegnised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asse! is carried at a revalued amaunt, In which case, the reversal
is treated as a revaluation increase.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measuremant

The Restricted Group uses derivative financial instrumenis, such as interest rate swaps and call opticns, to hedge its interest rate risks and foreign cumency risks, Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered inte and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value Is negative

Derivative and Hedging activities
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In the nommal course of business, the Group uses derivative instruments for the purpose of mitigating the exposure from foreign currency fluctuation risks associated with recognized
assel or liability denominated in certain foreign currencies and to minimize eamings and cash flow volatility associated with changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and not for
speculalive trading purposes. These derivative contracts are purchased within the Restricted Group's policy and are with counterparties that are highly rated financial institutions
Such derivative financial instruments are Initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value
through Profit & loss. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depands on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging and if so, the nature of the item hedged.

Contracts designated as Cash Flow Hedge
The effective portion of cumulative changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and gualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in
cash flow hedging reserve within equity.

Where option contracts are used to hedge recognized asset or liability, the Company designates intnnsic value of the opticn contract as hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating
to the effective pertien of the change in intrinsic value of the opticn contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in fime value of the option
contracts that relate to the hedged items are recognised through other comprehensive income as ‘Costs of hedging’ within equity. The cost associated with a hedging instrument is
treated as cost of hedging and expensed over the period of the hedge contract.

The amounts recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve are recycled to the statement of profit and loss at the same time when the impact from the underlying transaction affects
statement of profit and loss. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within other gains/{losses).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold, or when a hedge no lenger meets the eriteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative galn or loss existing in equity at that time s
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and onhand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term deposits, as defined above, net off bank averdrafts as they considered an
integral part of the Restricted Group's cash management.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabliities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmad only by the cccurrence or non-occumence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Restricted Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be mads.
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Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date
Impact of events occumng after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially effecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the
balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and liabilities.

The Restricted Group does not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting year.

The Restricted Group makes disclosures in the financial statement in cases of significant events.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Ministry of Carporate Affairs ("MCA’} notifies new standard er amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilties assumed must meet the definitions of
assets and liabiities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards {Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountarits of India at the acquisition date These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103, the Restricted Group does not expect the amendment to
have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use :

The amandments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the Restricted Group is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. the Restricted Group does not expect the amendments
to have any impact in its recognition of its propery, plant and equipment in its financial statements

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the 'cost of fulfiling' a contract comprises the “cosls that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relale directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (examples would be direct labour, matenals) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulliling contracts. The amendment is
essentially a clarification and the Restricted Group does not expect the amendment 1o have any significant impact in its financial statements

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS {2021)
The amendment clarfies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 10 percent’ test of Ind AS 108 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. the Restricted
Graup does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in s financial statements.

Ind AS 116 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021}
The amendments remove the ilustration of the reimbursemerit of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resoive any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise bacause of how lease incentives were described in that illustration the Restricted Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in

its financial statements

Standards issuad but not yet effective
There are no new standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Restricted Group's financial statements.

Significant a ting its, estimates and ti

The preparation of the Restricted Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the Restricted Grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in autcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the

management. Considering the applicabilly of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, the management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of all its property, plant and
equipment, The management befieves that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment, though
these rates in certain cases are different fram lives prescribed under Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 (Refer note 3, 4 and §)

i} Fair Value t of fi fal |

Whien the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilites recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair vaiue is
measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model The inputs to these maodels are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasicle, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit nsk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the

reported fair value of financial instruments. See note 35 and 36 for further disclosures

iii) Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax

The Restricied Group makes various assumptions and estimates while computing deferred taxes which include production related data (PLFs), projected operations and
maintenance costs, projected finance costs, proposed availment of deductien under section 801A of the Income Tax Act, 1861 and the period over which such deduction shall be
availed, usage of brought forward losses etc. While these assumptions are based on best available facts in the knowledge of management as on the balance sheet date however,
they are subject to change year on year depending on the actual tax laws and other variables in the respective year, Given that the actual assumptions which would be used to file
thie return of income shall depend upon the tax laws prevailing n respective year, management shall continue to reassess these assumptions while calculating the deferred taxes on
sach balance shest date and the impact due to such change, if any, is considered in the respective year. Refer note 30
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Iv} Estimation of assets and obligations relating to employee benefits (including actuarial assumptions)

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuanal valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making vanous assumptions which may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases. mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of
the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding
to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly availabie mortality tables for the specific countries. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates, Refer note 32

v} Recognition and measurement of contingency: Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regutations, changes in tax laws, legal interpretations of various other actsflaws, and the amount and timing of
future faxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences ansing between the
actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes io such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Restricted
Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of pravious tax audits and differing
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of Interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. Refer note 30 and 34,

vi) Impairment of non-Financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset ar cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its valus
in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or chservable market
prices less Incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model, The cash flows are defived from the budget for useful life of the
project and do not include restructuring activities that the Restricted Group entiies are not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the assel's
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth
rate used for extrapolation purposes, Refer note 4

vii) Going concern assessment - note 43

(vili) ECL on trade receivables-The Restricted Group follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables The application of simplified
approach does not require the Restreited Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recegnition. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. As concluded by the management that there is no risk of default from the DISCOMs/State
Govarnment bodies being a state government entities, Accordingly, no provision for default risk is required for receivables from DISCOM. As per the requirements of Ind AS 109, on
subsequent measurement, the management while making ECL assessment considered the past experience with the Govemment of hanouring its commitments and the strong
capacity and ability of the Government to meet its contractual cash flow obligations

This space has been left intentionally
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land Plant and Bullding Right of use Right of use Computers Total
(refer note (a) Equipments and asset (Land) asset (Building) and Data
and (b) below) Substation (refer note 34) (refer note 34) processing
Machines
Gross Block
(At cost)
As at April 01 2020 1,333.81 32,265.18 876.99 259.34 58.73 48.04 34.942.09
Additions made during the year - 0.01 013 - - 0.25 0.39
Disposals / adjustments during the year - (13.09) - - (58.73) = (71.82)
As at March 31, 2021 1,333.81 32,252.10 977.12 259.34 . 48.29 34,870.66
Additions made during the year 32.08 85.15 - - - 0.29 117.52
Disposals / adjustments during the year - (10.73) (3.94) - - {0.30) (14.97)
As at March 31, 2022 1,365.89 32,326.52 873.18 259.34 - 48.28 34,873.21
Depreciation and impairment
As at April 01 2020 - 4,410.34 137.69 11.92 8.01 28.81 4,596.77
Depreciation charge for the year - 1,325.23 43.65 11.85 4.68 742 1,392.83
On disposals / adjustments during the year - - - - (12.69) - (12.69)
As at March 31, 2021 - 5,735.57 181.34 23.77 - 36.23 5976.91
Depreciation charge for the year® - 1,016.85 35.22 11.86 - 5.36 1,069.28
On disposals / adjustments during the year - (0.49) (0.01) - - (0.27) (0.77)
As at March 31, 2022 - 6,751.93 216.55 35.63 - 41.32 7.045.43
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 1,333.81 26,516.53 795.78 235.57 - 12.08 28,893.75
As at March 31, 2022 1,365.89 25,574.59 756.63 2231 - 6.96 27.927.78
*Refer note 2.3(i) for change in useful life of wind and solar power plants
(a) 153.51 acre (March 31, 2021: 143.28 acre) of land are hypothecated for long term borrowings.
(b) Refer note 15 for charge against the above mentioned assets.
(¢} Title deeds of inmovable property not held in name of one of the Indian RG entity, Clean Solar Power (Gulbarga) Private Limited:
Relevant line item in the Balance Sheet Description of | Area ( acres) Gross Title dead Whether title Property Reason for not
the property carrying held deed holder is held being held in
amount  |in the name of promoter, since the
director or name of the
relative of company
promoter/
director or
employee of
promoterf
director
As at March 31, 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment Land 258.66 - |Vvarious No Year 2017- Procedural
\ l Persons \ 2019 | formalities
As at March 31, 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment Land I 34717 | - |Various No | Year 2017- ‘ Procedural
Persons 2018 formalities
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4  Capital work-in-progress

Movement during the year

As at April 1, 2020

Addition during the year

Impairment during the year (Refer note below)
As at March 31, 2021

Addition during the year

Impairment during the year (Refer note below)
Less; Capitalised during the year

As at March 31, 2022

Total

101.80

(58.96)

42.84

(42.84)

In one of the Restricted Group entity namely Clean Wind Power (Satara) Private Limiled, the commissioning of one WTG of 2 MW ("WTG") got delayed due to certain

Right of Way (RoW) and other land related issues resulting into expiration of Infrastructure Clearance given by Maharashtra Energy Devel

Considering the fact that the WTG commissioning gol delayed, the management had carried an impairment assessment and identified the discounted cash flows based

lopment Agency ('MEDA').

on weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 10.65% and plant load factor (PLF) of 23.70% ascertained based on project actual performance and external factors.
Accordingly, the Company had recognised an impairment charge of Rs. 58.96 million during the year ended March 31, 2021 and Rs. 75.16 million as at March 31, 2021,
The said WTG is commissioned in June 2021. The management believes that remaining carrying value of the said WTG under the head ‘Property plant and equipment
amounting to Rs, 42.84 million as at March, 2022 is fully recoverable as the project is expected to generate future economic benefits.

(i} Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule as at 31 March 2021:

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less |1-2years| 2-3 | More
than 1 years |than 3
year years
Project in progress - 42.84 - - 42.84

The ageing for an item of CWIP shall be determined from the date of its initial recognition to the date of balance sheet.

5 Other Intangible Assets

Gross Block

{At cost)

As at April 01, 2020

Additions made during the year
As at March 31, 2021
Additions made during the year
As at March 31, 2022

Amortisation and impairment
As at April 01, 2020
Amortisation for the year

As at March 31, 2021
Amortisation for the year

As at March 31, 2022

Net book value
As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2022

Customer Contracts (Purchase

Total

Power Agreements)

157.00 157.00
157.00 157.00
157.00 1567.00
19.29 19.39
7.98 7.98
27.37 27.37
7.98 7.98
35.35 35.35
129,63 129.63
121.65 121.65
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Trade receivables

Current
Trade receivables*

- Receivables considered good - Unsecured,

- Receivables-credit impaired

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

- Receivables-credit impaired

* Trade receivable include the amount of unbilied revenue.

*Trade recelvable include the amount receivable from related parties (refer note 31)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

273193 265727
0,26 0.26
2.732.19 2,657.53

(0.26) (0.28)
2,731.93 2,657.27
383.35 382,60
4.42 2.42

a) No trade or other receivable are dus from directors or ofher officers of the entity either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other recewable are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member,

b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 31.

¢} Trade receivables are generally on terms of 45 to 60 days

Below is the ageing, form the due date of pay t, of the outstanding trade recievables as at reporting dates:
Particulars (i) Undisputed (i) Undisputed | i) Undisputed | (iv) Disputed (v) Disputed {vi) Disputed Trade Total
Trade receivables Trade Trade Trade Trade Receivables - credit
- considerad good| Receivables- | Receivables - | Receivables - | Receivables - impaired
which have credit impaired | considered which have
significant good significant
increase in credit ingrease in credit
risk risk
As at March 21, 2022
Unbilled 383.35 = e % = - 383.35
Not Due 269.90 - - - - - 269.90
Less than & months 1,107-67 - - " s - 1,107.67
6 months- 1 year 95543 - - - - - 955.43
1-2 years 6.82 - - - & 6.82
2-3 years 4.26 - - - - = 4.26
More than 3 years 4 50 0.26 - - * 4.76
Total 2,731.93 « 0.26 - - - 2,7321¢9
As at March 21, 2021
Unbilled 38260 - = & = 382.60
Mot Due 26526 = = ] - = 255.28
Less than 6 months 1,347 63 - - % = " 1,347.63
6 months- Tyear 63020 - - - - - 630.20
1-2 years 36.38 = - = - = 36.38
2-3 years o B & = # = -
Mare than 3 years 520 0.26 - - - 5.46
Total 2,657.27 - 0.26 - - - 2,657.53
As at As at

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with barks
- Current account*

- Deposits with original maturity of three months or less

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, dep

interest at the respective short-term deposit rales

*Balance with banks-current account of Rs. 270.43 mi
expenses and estimated transaction expenses and (i) funds to ba transferred to Ini

entities

a) For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Balances with banks:
- Current account

- Depasits with original maturity of three months or less

Bank overdraft {refer note 15)

Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 menths but less than or equal to 12 months*

Balance with banks™

*includes deposits held as margin money against bank guarantee and short term loan,

~Balance as at March 31, 2021 represents proceeds from the issue of 4. 25% Senior secured notes.

entities of the Restricted Group along with prepayment charges

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1,438.18 4,307.88
- 416.08
1,439.18 4723.96_

ending on the immediate cash requirements of the Restricted Group, and earm

lion (March 31, 2021; 3,508 million} pertains to (i) funds which can be used by CRPMPL for meeting its operating
dian entities of Restricted Group for expenditure on general corporate purpose of these

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,439.18 4,307 88
- 416.08
(599.56) (14451}
839.62 4,579.45
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
810 14557
- 22,447.32
8.10 22,592.89
774 103.68

to be utilised for payment of existing project indebtedness in Indian
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9 Other financial assets

Non- current

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Deposits with original maturity of mare than 12 maonths (refer note (i} below) 0.32 030
Balance with banks (refer note (ii} below) 127.96 133.40
Loan to related parties (refer note (it} below and note 31) B880.00 880.00
Security deposits- considered good 3549 3553
Security deposits- credit impaired 0.03 0.03
Less: impairment allowances for security deposits- credit impaired (0.03) (0.03}
Receivables from government authorities (Refer note 40) 325.61 -
1,369.38 1,049.23
Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 manths (refer note (i) below) 0.03 0.03
Balance with banks (refer note {ii) below) 6,88 -
Loan to related parties (refer note (iii) below and note 31) 833.02 =
Accrued Interest or fixed deposits - 1.54
Accrued interest on loan to related parties (refer note 31) 297.53 169,18
Security deposits 581 4.01
Receivables from government authorities (refer note 40) 24.34 -
Other receivables (refer note 31) 366.21 366.80
Less: provision for doubtful debts (refer note 34 (c) {11 {34.53) (34.53)
1,499.09 507.03
Total 2,868.47 1,666.26
Notes:
(i} Includes fixed deposit with interest under lien held as margin money 035 033

(ii) This represents 0.5% of outstanding 4.25% Senior secured notes (“Equity Cushion Amount’) to be maintained by the Company as per underlying indenture,

(iii) Loan to related parties:

{a) One of the Restricted Group entity, Clean Wind Power (Ratlam) Pvi Ltd entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated March 04, 2019 with Hero Solar Energy Private Limited
for availing loan upto Rs. 1000 million. The loan disbursed and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 880 million (March 31, 2021 Rs 680 million). The applicable
interest will be 55 bps higher than interest rate of secured lenders

(b) One of the Restricted Group entity, Clean Solar Power (Rajkot} Pyt Ltd. entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated April 01, 2018 with Hero Wind Energy Private Limited
for availing loan upte Rs. 500 million. The loan disbursed and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 200 million (March 31, 2021 Rs 200 million). The applicable interest
shall not be lower than the rate applicable based on prevailing yield of government securities closest to the tenure of loan

(c) One of the Restricted Group entity, Clean Wind Power (Bableshwer) Byt Lid, entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated April 15, 2021 with Hero Wind Energy Private
Limited for availing loan upto Rs. 200 million, The loan disbursed and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 181.20 million The applicable interest shall not be lower
than the rate applicable based on prevailing yield of government securities closest to the tenure of loan

(d} One of the Restricted Group entity, Clean Wind Power (Dhar) Pyt Ltd. entered into a “Loan Agreement” dated April 15, 2021 with Hero Solar Energy Private Limited for
availing loan upto Rs. 250 million. The loan disbursed and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 207 62 million, The applicable interest shall not be lower than the rate
applicable based on prevailing yield of government securities closest to the tenure of loan

(e) One of the Restricted Group entity, Clean Wind Power (Rajkot) Pyt Lid. entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated April 15, 2021 with Hero Solar Energy Private Limited
for availing loan upto Rs. 150 million, The loan disbursed and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 140 million. The applicable interest shall not be lower than the rate
applicable based on prevailing yield of government securities closest to the tenure of loan

(f) One of the Restricted Group entity, Claan Wind Power (Guibarga) Pvt Ltd. entered into a "Loan Agresment” dated June 18, 2021 with Hero Solar Energy Private Limited
for avaiiing loan upto Rs. 750 million. The loan disbursed and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 304 20 million. The applicable interast shall not be lower than the
rate applicable based on prevailing yield of government securities closest to the tenure of loan

. i As at As at
a) Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables (Refer to note 6} 273193 2,657.27
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 7) 143918 472398
Other bark balances {Refer o note 8) 810 22,592 89
Other financial assets (Refer to note 9) 2.B68.47 155826
Total ?!047.58 31153038
10 QOther assets As at As at

(Unsecured, considered good, untess otherwise stated)

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Non- current
Capital advances 90.81 80.81
Less: Provision for doubtful capital advances (87.51) (87.51)
Prepaid expenses 39.71 42.53
Prepaid gratuity- funded (net of provision for gratuity) (refer note 32) 3.56 672
Deferred asset 146.94 154.31
193.51 __200.86_
Current
Balance with government authorities 20 0.08
Advance to Vendors 23569 162.87
Less; provision for doubtful advance (refer note 34 (¢} (1) {132.00) (39.39)
Prepaid expenses 51.79 5.83
Advance to employees 078 233
Deferred asset 727 27
Other receivables 582 -
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable (5.82) =
165.54 138.79
11 Non- current tax assets (net) As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance Income Tax (Net) * 5854 8272
58.54 8272
* net of provision for tax 70.90 107.37
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12 Inventories As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stores and spares 13.38 4.30
13.38 4.30
As at As at

Equity Share Capital

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

The Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements do not represent a legal antity structure. The share capital of the Restricted Group is the summation of the share

capital of the respective entities forming part of the Restricted Group.

Authorised share capital

Equity Share capital

12,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 12,000 000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Bableshwar)
Private Limited*

45,010,000 (March 31, 2021 45,010,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Solar Power {Dhar}
Private Limited#

£0,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 60,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Bhilwara Green Energy Limited*
126,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 126,000,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Sciar Power (Gulbarga)
Private Limited#

45,000,000 (March 31, 2021 15,000000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Piploda)
Private Limited®

15,000,000 (March 31, 2021 15,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each in Rajkot (Gujarat) Solar Energy
Private Limited#

35,000,000 {March 31, 2021, 35,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Ratlam)
Private Limited”

120,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 120,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Satara)
Private Limited®

B93,830.30 (March 31, 2021, 164,381) equity shares of $ 1 each in Clean Renewable Power (Mauritius)
Pte. Ltd$

Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity share capital

10,000 (March 31, 2021 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Bablashwar) Private
Limited*

45,010,000 (March 31, 2021; 45,010,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Solar Power (Dhar)
Private Limited#

565,080,070 (March 31, 2021 56 960,070) equity shares of Re. 10 each in Bhilwara Green Energy Limited*

126,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 65,000,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each in Clean Solar Power {Gulbarga)
Private Limited#
13,613,000 (March 31, 2021° 13,613,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Piploda)
Private Limited®

13,750,000 (March 31, 2021: 13,750,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each in Rajkot {Guyarat) Solar Energy
Private Limited#

35,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 35,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power (Ratlam)
Private Limited"

71,889,000 {March 31, 2021 71,889,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each in Clean Wind Power {Satara)
Private Limited*

803,839.30 (March 31, 2021 164, 361) equity shares of $ 1 each in Clean Renewable Power (Mauritius)
Pte, Lid$

* resperesents entities held by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited
# respresents entities held by Hero Solar Energy Private Limited
% respresents entities held by Here Future Energies Asia Pte, Ltd

a) Reconciliation of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital:

i. Reconciliation of authorised share capital as at yvear end :
Balance as at April 1, 2020
Issued during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Issued during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022

ii. Recongiliation of issued and subscribed share capital as at vear end :
Balance as at April 1, 2020

Issued during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Issued during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2022

b) Terms! rights attached to equity shares:

120.00 120.00
450.10 450.10
&00.00 £00.00
1,26000 1,260 00
150.00 150.00
150,00 150.00
350.00 35000
120000 4,200.00
65.96 11.78
4“'3;1.8=.DE 4,%
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
0.10 a.10
45010 450,10
569,60 560.60
1,260.00 1.260.00
13613 136.13
137.60 137.50
35000 350.00
718.89 718.88
6596 11.78
3,688.28 3.834.10

No. of shares {Rs. in million)

388,156,460 3,890.54
40,017,921 401.34
428,174,381 4,291.88
729,458 54.18
423!203183‘! 4,346.06
No. of shares (Rs. in million)
302,378,530 3.032.786
60,017,921 601.34
362,396,451 3,634.10
729458 54.18
363,125,909 3,688.28

The Restricted Group has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vole per shiare and entitied

to receive dividends as declared from time fo time.

I the event of liquidation of the entities of the Restricted Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the entities, after distribution of

all praferential amounts. The distribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders,
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c) Below is the details of the shares held by the promoters:
Particulars No of the ichange during [No. of shares |% of total % change during
Ishares at the the year at the end of |shares at year tha year|
beginning of the the year end
year
For the year ended March 31,
2022
Hero Wind Energy 177,472,070 177,472,070 48.87% 0.00%
Private Limited
Hero Solar Energy 184,760,000 184,760,000 50.88% 0.00%
Private Limited
Hero Future 164,381 728,458 893,839 025% 443.76%
Energies Asia Pte.
Lid.
For the year ended March 31, Hero Wind Energy 177,472,070 177,472,070 4B.87% 0.00%
2021 Private Limited
Hero Solar Energy 124,760,000 60,000,000 | 184,760,000 50.98% 48 09%
Private Limitad
Hero Future 146,460 17,921 164,381 0.05% 12.24%
Energies Asia Ple.
Lid

Includes shares held by nominee shareholder

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2022

Hero Wind Energy Private Limited along with its nominee
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited along with its nomines
Hero Future Energies Asia Pte Ltd,

As at March 31, 2021

Hero Wind Energy Private Limited along with its nomines
Hero Solar Eneray Private Limited along with its nominee
Hero Future Energies Asia Pte. Ltd.

No. of shares Holding %
177,472,070 48 B7%
184,760,000 50.88%

893 839 0.25%
363,125,808 100.00%

No. of shares Holding %
177,472,070 48.97%
184,760,000 50.968%

164,381 0.05%
352!395!451 100.00%

(e} The status of shares mentioned above is as under:

Bhilwara Green Energy Limited

(a) 51% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for borrowing obtained by the entity {refer note 15) and
(b) 49% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for its awn borrowings from lenders

Clean Wind Power (Bableshwar) Private limited

51% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for berrowing obtained by the entity (Refer note 15),

Clean Wind Power (Piploda) Private Limited

51% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for borrowing obtained by the entity. (Refer note 15).

Clean Wind Power (Satara) Private Limited

{a) 51% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for borrowing obtained by the entity (Refer note 15} and

(b} 49% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for the purpose of berrowing in Hero Future Energies Private Limited.

Clean Wind Power {Ratlam) Private Limited
a) 51% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for borrowings obtairied by the entity (Refer Note 15)

(b) 49% shares are pledged by Hero Wind Energy Private Limited for the purpose of borrowing in Here Future Energies Private Limited,

Rajkot (Gujarat) Solar Energy Private Limited
51% shares are pledged by Hero Solar Energy Private Limited for borrowing oblained by the entity (Refer note 15),

Clean Solar Power (Dhar) Private Limited
51% shares are pledged by Hero Solar Energy Private Limited for borrowing obtained by the entity (Refer nota 15)

Clean Solar Power (Gulbarga) Private Limited

a) 49.57% of equity shares are pledged by Hero Solar Energy Private Limited for the purpase of borrowing obtained by the entity (Refer nota 15) and
b} 49.00% of equity shares are pledged by Hero Solar Energy Private Limited for the purpose of borrowing in Hero Future Energies Private Limited

f) No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by the way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance shast date.

Other Equity

Retained Earninas

Opening Balance (April 1, 2020)

Add:- Deficit in statement of profit and loss

Add:- Other comprehensive expense

Closing Balance (March 31, 2021)

Add:- Deficit in statement of profit and loss

Add:- Other comprehensive income

Add:: Transfer from debenture redemption reserve
Closing Balance (March 31, 2022)

Other Reserves

Securities premium

Opening Balance (April 1, 2020)
Add:- Addition during the vear
Less:- Share |ssue Expenses
Closing Balance (March 31, 2021)
Add:- Addition during the yvear
Closing Balance (March 31, 2022)

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance (April 1, 2020)
Add:- Addition during the year
Closing Balance (March 31, 2021)
Add:- Addition during the year

Less:- transferred to retained earnings
Closing Balance (March 231, 2022)

Amount

{1,609.88)
(844.80)

Q.52
(2,554.26)
(277.77)

579

208.58

2,616.66

261.40
(3.60)
267 80

257.80

209.58
209.58

(209.58)

_——
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Invested Capital

Opening Balance {April 1, 2020) 463,31
Add:- Addition during the year 5
Closing Balance (March 31, 2021) 463.31
Add:- Addition during the vear —_ e,
Closing Balance (March 31, 2022) 463.31
Foreign Currency Translation

Opening Balance (April 1, 2020) (5.19)
Add:- Addition during the year 180
Add - transferred from deemed capital contribution (9.07)
Closing Balance (March 31, 2021) (3.66)
Add:- Addition during the year 0.82
Closing Balance (March 31, 2022) !2,84!
Cash Flow Hedging Reserve

Opening Balance (April 1, 2020) -
Add.- Addition during the year .
Less - Utiised during the year

Closing Balance (March 31, 2021) -
Add: - Addition during the year {189.78)
Less: Tax effect {28.47)
Less:- Utilised during the year -

Closing Balance (March 31, 2022) ;213.25:

Cost of Hedging Reserve

Opening Balance (April 1, 2020) ¥
Add - Addition during the year -
Closing Balance (March 31, 2021) %

Add:- Addition during the year (232.77)
Less; Tax effect {34.92)
Closing Balance (March 31, 2022) ;25?.69!
B d capital contributi

Opening Balance (April 1, 2020) 62.91
Add:- Addition during the year (refar nate (a) below) 5418
Less: Transferred to share capital (refer note (a) below) (1.34)
Less: Transfarred to Foreign currency translation reserve .07
Closing Balance (March 31, 2021) 115.82
Add:- Addition during the year -
Less: Transferred to share capital (refer note {a) below) (54.18)
Closing Balance (March 31, 2022) 61.64

{a) The Company had received funds of Rs, Nil million (March 31, 2021 Rs. 54.18 million) from the parent for settlement of the operational expenses, out of which Rs
53 84 million (March 31, 2021 Rs. 134 million) has transferred to share capital.

Equity component of compulsory convertible debentures (refer note {b) below)

Opening Balance (01 April 2020) 598.81
Add:- Addition during the year 24614
Less - Deferred tax charge (61.95)
Closing Balance (31 March 2021) 783.00
Add - Addition during the year =
Closing Balance (31 March 2022) 783,00

(b) One of the Restricted Group Entity, Clean Solar Power (Gulbarga) Private Limited had issued unrated, unlisted, unsecured Compulsory Convertible Cumulative
Debentures to its holding company Hero Saolar Energy Private Limited, having a face value of Rs 10 each to finance the project The said entity has adopted the split
method of accounting under IND AS and discounted the expected cash cutflows and determined the same as financial liability as on the date of issue of debentures. The
entity has allocated the residual value 1o the equity component. Refer note 15 for further details.

The entity had opted for lower tax rate under section 115BAA of the Income tax act. 1981 resulting in adjustment to equity component of compulserily convertible
debentures

Nature and Purpose of Reserve:

Securities Premium

Securities premium reserve is created to record the premium on issue of shares of Clean Solar Power (Gulbarga) Private Limited. The reserve car be utilised only for
limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Debenture Redemption Reserve

One of the Restricted Group entity namely Bhilwara Green Energy Limited ("BGEL"), had issued redeemable nen-convertible debentures. Under the Companies (Share
capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 {as amended), the Company was required to create DRR, for amount equivalent to 25% of the value of debentures issued, out of
profits of the Company available for payment as dividend However, vVide notification G SR 574 (E) dated August 16, 2019, in case of privately placed debentures.
Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR') is not required for the Company. Accordingiy, the entity has transferred the DRR to retained earnings, Further to this, such
debentures have been redeemed fully during the year

Invested Capital

Parent Contribution represents fair value uplift (net of tax) recognised in accordance with Ind AS 103 'Business Combinations' and Para 16 of the guidance note on
Combined andlor Carve-out financial statements issued by ICAIL on account of acquisition of Bhilwara Green Energy Limited.

Cash Flow Hedgeing Reserve

The Restricted Group uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign curency risk associated on borrowings. For hedging foreign currency, the Restricled
Group uses call spread option with cross currency swap for coupon payments. To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument
is recognised in the effective portion of cash flow hedges. Amounts recognised in the effective portion of cash flow hedges is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss
when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Cost of Hedgeing Reserve

The Restricted Group designates the spot component of foreign currency forward contracts and the intrinsic value of foreign currency option contracts as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships. Such amount is recognised in OCH and amortised to the statement of profit and loss on a rational basis

The Restricted Group also excludes from the designation the foreign currency basis spread element of the swap, which is recognised in OCland amortised to statement of
profit and loss on a rational basis

Foreign Currency Translation Reserves
vchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in ofher comprehensive income as described in accounting policy and accumulated in
separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.
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16 Borrowings

Non- current
Secured
4.25% Senior secured notes (refer note 1 below)

Unsecured

Optional Convertible Cumulative Debentures (refer note 2 below)
Compulsory Convertible Debentures (refer note 2 below)

Loan from Related Party {refer note 3 below)

Current
Secured
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 4 below)

Current maturities of Non-Convertible Debentures- Senior (refer note 4 below)

Current maturities of 4,25% Senior secured notes (refer note 1 below)
Cash credit (refer note 2 below)
Working Capital facility

Unsecured
Loan from related parties
Bank overdraft

Total

a) Senior Secured notes attract interest rate of 4.25% p.a.

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

25,326.86 25,826.59
1,799.78 1,799.64
1.532.89 1,571.63

32.84 =

28,692.37 29,197.86

= 21,337.28

- 798.50
1,304.10 465.45

599.56 -

# 111.50

i 1.316.42

) 144.51
1,903.66 24,173.66
30,596.03 53,371.52

b) Loan from Related parties, Working Capital facility and cash credit from banks carries interest in the range of @ 8.45% p.a- 11% p.a

¢) Optional Convertible Cumulative Debentures ("“OCCD") carry interest
d) Compulsery Convertible Debentures ("CCD") carry interest of 6% p.a

Notes on security terms:

-

4.25% Senior Secured Notes

in the range of 8.90% p.a.- 9.94% p.a., which is linked to MCLR
-9.40% p.a., which is linked to MCLR

On March 19, 2021, the Company had caried out issuance of 4.25% Serior secured notes for US$363 million (Equivalent Rs. 26,680.50 million) with a tenor of &

years falling due in 2027 to Qualified Institutional buyers.

4.25% Senior secured notes is secured by pledge of 100% of the Company held by Hero Future Energies Asia Pte Ltd, floating charge over all assets of the Issuer
(excluding the Onshore Debt, but including, any receivables from the Onshore Debt and any proceeds realized therefrom) and first-priority security interest in the
Eserow Account. Security will be shared pari-passu with hedge providers. The notes will mature on March 25, 2027,

Amount (Rs. ‘

2 Optional Convertible Cumulative Dek Ires
Entity name Nature of Lender ]
in million)

Payment terms

Security and other
details

Optional Convertible Cumulative Debentures ("OCCD")

Clean Wind Power Hero Wind Energy Private
(Ratlam) Private Limited Limited

1,047.83

(i) OCCD | (35,000,000 deberitures of face value Rs, 10 each)-
On 20th anniversary of the issuance of the Series | OCCDs,
(Issuance Date- January 20, 2016)

(ii) OCCD 1 (35,000,000 debentures of face value Rs. 10 each)-
On 23rd anniversary of the issuance of the Series Il OCCDs
(lssuance Date- January 20, 2016)

(iii) OCCD 1 (35,000,000 debentures of face value Rs, 10 each)-
On 25th anniversary of the issuance of the Series Il OCCDs
(Issuance Date for 25000,000 debentures and 10,000,000
debentures- January 20, 2016 and June 28, 2016 respectively ),

Subiject to prior approval from the lenders of the entity at the

Unsecurad

Clean Wind Power 407.61

(Piploda) Private Limited

Hero Wind Energy Private
Limited

(i) OCCD | (20,000,000 debentures of face value Rs. 10 each)-
On 20th anniversary of the issuance of the Series | OCCDs
(Issuance Date- February 01, 2017)
(i) OCCD 11 (20,838,000 debentures of face value Rs. 10 each)-
On 25th anniversary of the issuance of the Series Il OCCDs
{Issuance Date- February 01, 2017)

Subject to prior approval from the lenders of the enlity at the
option of Debenture Subscriber.

Unsecured

Hero Solar Energy Private 344.34

Limited

Rajkot{Gujarat) Sclar
Energy Private Limited

(i) OCCD | (20,000,000 debentures of face value Rs. 10 each)-
On 20th anniversary of the issuance of the Series | OCCDs
(lssuance Date- January 30, 2017),
(ify QCCD 1l (14,500,000 debentures of face value Rs. 10 each)-
On 25th anniversary of the issuance of the Series || OCCDs
{Issuance Date- January 30, 2017),

Subject to prior approval from the lenders of the entity at the
option of Debenture Subscriber,

Unsecured

Total 1,799.78
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Entity name Nature of Lender ‘ ‘ Payment terms Security and other
details

Compulsory Convertible Debentures ("CCD")
Clean Selar Power Hero Solar Enery Private 1,532.89 [(i) CCD (Series 1) (57 milion of face value Rs 10 each)- Unsecured
{Gulbarga) Private Limited |Limited Conversion into equily shares is fixed in the ratio of 1:1 upon

expiry of 10 year. The entity with a written notice of 30 days, shall

have right to call upon the debenture subscriber to convert CCD

at any time after 3 years from the date of issuance of the CCD

i.e, March 02, 2017 and mandatory conversion upon expiry of 10

years from issuance

(i) CCD (Series 1) (50 million of face value Rs 10 each)-

Conversion into equity shares is fixed in the ratio of 1:1 upon

expiry of 10 year. The entity with a written notice of 30 days, shall

have right to call upen the debenture subscriber to convert CCD

at any time after 3 years from the date of issuance of the CCD

i.e, November 28, 2017 and mandatory conversion upon expiry

of 10 years from issuance

(iiiy €CD (Series A) (129.96 milion of face value Rs 10 each)-

The entity with a written notice of 30 days, shall have right to call

upon the debenture subscriber to convert Series A CCD at any

time

{iv) CCD IV (Series A"} (20 million of face value Rs 10 each)-

The entity with a written notice of 30 days, shall have right to call

upon the debenture subscriber to convert Series A CCD at any

time.

* Allotment of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures Series (A} is

of Rs. 5.00 million out of Rs. 20,00 million number of CCDs.
Total 1,532.89

Entity name Mature of Lender Payment terms Security and other
details
Bank Overdraft
Clean Wind Power| Axis Bank Ltd 286.94 |Repayable on demand Facility is secured by first
(Ratlam) Private Limited charge on the entire current
Clean Wind Power (Satara)|Axis Bank Ltd 38.84 |Repayable on demand assets of the respective
Private Limited entily, present and future;
Clean Wind Power|Axis Bank Ltd 85.57 |Repayable on demand second charge on the
(Piploda) Private Limited entire mO\.‘rabIe fixed assets
Bhiwara Green Energy|Axis Bank Ltd 32.80 |Repayable on demand of respective entity, present
Limited and future and corporate
Clean  Wind __ Power|Axis Bank Lid 100.05 |Repayable on demand gurantee of Hero Fulure
(Bableshwar) Private Energies Private Limited,
Limited
Clean Solar Power (Dhar)|Axis Bank Lid 18.62 |Repayable on demand
Private Limited
Clean Solar Power (Rajkot)|Axis Bank Ltd 30.14 |Repayable on demand
Private Limited
Clean Salar Power|Axis Bank Ltd 6.61 [Repayable on demand
(Gulbarga) Private Limited
Total §99.56

3 Loan from Related Parties
(a) The entity has entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated Feb 05, 2016 (amended December 21, 2016) with Hero Wind Energy Private Limited {the holding company)
for availing loan upto Rs. 1,500.00 million and accordingly till March 31, 2022 the entity has Rs 0.7 million (March 31, 2021: 583,11 million) outstanding balance
against the sanctioned limited.

{b) The Entity has entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated February 5, 2016 with Hero Wind Energy Private Limited (the holding company) for availing loan upto Rs.
500.00 million (March 31, 2021: Rs 500.00 million) and accordingly till March 31, 2022 the entity has Rs. 16,00 million (March 31, 2021: Rs 66,25 million) disbursed
against the sanctioned limited.

(c} (i) The enlity has entered in to Intercompany Loan Agreement ("Agreement”) dated Oclober 18, 2017 with Hero Wind Energy Private Limited ("HWEFL"} to borrow
an amount of Rs. 205.60 million camying an interest rate of 13% p.a. to prepay the subordinate non convertible debentures of aggregale face value of Rs, 321.61
million. Outstanding amount as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. 5.6 million}.

(c) (ii) The entity has entered into a "Loan Agreement” dated January 24, 2018 with Hero Wind Energy Private Limited {the holding company) for availing loan upto Rs.
500.00 million and accordingly till March 31, 2022 the Company has received Rs. 13.64 million (March 31, 2021: Rs. 88.00 million) disbursed against the sanctioned
limited.

(d) The Entity has entered into a "Loan Agreemenl” dated December 19, 2016 with Hero Wind Energy Private Limited (the holding company) for availing loan upto Rs.
500.00 millien and accardingly till March 31, 2022 the entity has Rs. 2.50 million (March 31, 2021: Rs 479.32 million) disbursed against the sanctioned limit.

4 Term Loans and NCDs availed by various entities of the Restricted Group from various Banks and Financial Institutions are secured by way of charge on all present
and future moveable and immovable assets, stores and spares, raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, book debts, project receivables, intangibles,
uncalled capilal receivables, rights under project documents of the respective enfities, project cash flows, regulatory deferral accounts, accounts including Debt
Service Reserve Accounts and bank accounts, bank guarantees and pledge of shares of entities held by their respective holding companies. Long Term Loan from
Banks and Financial Institutions attract interest rate ranging from 9.10%p.a.- 10.85% p.a.

During the current year, Indian Restricted Group entities have subseribed to rupee denominated external commercial borrowings and repaid their existing lenders,
therefore as at March 31, 2021, outstanding term loans of these Indian entities of Restricted Group reclassified from non-current borrowings to current maturities of
long term borrowings.
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As at

As at

Trade payables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Trade pavables

- Outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises* 146 437

- Qutstanding dues to parties other than micro and small enterprises 23554 1.016.48
237.00 1,020.85

Includes payable to related parties 51.27 71889

"Thesa have been (dentified by the Restricted Group from the available information which has been relied upon by the auditors.

For explanations on the Restricted Group's credit risk management processes, refer to note 38,

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006: As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any

supplier at the end of each accounting year 1.46 4.37
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2008 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year e -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED i C
Act 2008,
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - =
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance = I}
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
Below is the aqeing of the trade payables outstanding as at reporting dates:
Particulars (a) Undisputed | (b) Undisputed | (c) Disputed (d) Disputed Total
total outstanding total dues of micro total
dues of micro outstanding and small outstanding
and small dues of enterprises dues of
enterprises creditors other creditors
than micro and other than
small micro and
enterprises small
enterprises
As at March 31, 2022
Unbilled 016 126.73 - 2814 185.03
Not due 084 9.51 . - 10.35
Less than 1 Year 0.46 25.07 - - 25.53
1-2 Years - 021 - - 0.21
2-3 Years - 0.25 - - 0.25
More than 3 Years - 4563 - - 45.63
Total 1.46 207.40 - 28.14 237.00
As at March 31, 2021
Unbilled = 176.94 - 2814 205.08
Not due 4.37 103.46 - - 107.83
Less than 1 Year - 130.80 - - 130.80
1-2 Years 5 102.99 - - 102.99
23 Years - 25502 - - 255.02
More than 3 Years - 21813 - - 219.13
Total 4.37 988.34 - 28.14 1,020.85
Other Financial Liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non- current
Derivative Liability 138.95 -
138.95 -
Current
Interest accrued on borrowings - 34.99
Interest accrued on 4.25% Senior secured notes 18.10 1864
Interest accrued on loan from related parties (refer note 31) 77.04 918.89
Interest acerued on OCCD (refer note 31) 87.19 426.36
Interest accrued on Compulsory Convertible Debentures (refer note 31) 132.01 363 44
Payables for property, plant and equipment and intanaible asset 346.58 394.60
Other payable (refer note 31) 19.26 77766
681.16 2,934.58
Total 820.11 2,934.58
” T = As at As at
Breakup of financial liabilities at amortised cost; WMateh 34 si2s March 31, 2021
Borrowings (Refer note 15) 30.586.03 53,371.52
Trade payables (Refer note 16) 237.00 1.020.85
Other financial liabilities (Refer note 17} £81.16 293458
31,514.19 57,326.95
Other liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non- current
Deferred government grant {Refer note 39) 302.20 305.76
Deferred revenue (Refer note 40) 461.16 -
Operation and maintenance equalisation reserve 23328 276.08
996.62 581.84
Current
Deferred government arant {Refer note 38) 25,79 24,72
Deferred revenue (Refer note 40) 229 -
Operation and maintenance equalisation reserve 4282 31.33
Statutory dues 44.64 21.72
137.16 1777

Total 1,133.78

859.61
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20

2

22

23

24

Provisions

Non- current

Provision for employee benefits:

- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 32)
- Provision for compensated absences
Others

Provision for decommissigning cost

Current

Provision for emplovee benefits:

- Brovision for gratuity (Refer note 32)
- Provision for compensated absences

Movement of provision for decommissioning cost
As at 01 April 2020

Additions during the year

As at 31 March 2021

Additions during the vear

Change in estimates (refer note (i} below)

As at 31 March 2022

(i} Due to change in useful life during the vear |, the decommissioning fiability on Plant and Machinery and Building has been decreased by 13.06 millicn.

Liabilities for current tax (net)

Liabilities for current tax {(nat of advance tax}

* Net of advance tax

Revenue from operations

Type of goods or service

Sale of electricity
Less Rebate and Discounts

Sale of electricity (net of rebate and discounts}
Incentive under generation based incentive scheme

Other operating revenue
Income from Carbon Credit
Total revenue from operations
Performance Obligation

Sale of Electricity

As at As at
March 2022 March 31
.77 -
fs 10.24
3882 48.56
46.71 58.80
0.15 2.36
0.78 0.52
0.91 2.88
44,30
426
48.56
332
(13.08)
38.82
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
9.08 .
9.08 :
81.77 "
For the year ended

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

476537 458291
(34.98) (38.30)
4,720.39 4,544.61
21361 193,07
44,69 2225
4,978.69 4,759.93

The Restricted Group considers the power supplied under PPAs to be a distinct performanice obligation and the sale of power to be senes of distinct goods that are
substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer to the customer, The Restricted Group has therefore determined that the sale of power meets the revenue

recognition criteria to be recognised over time,

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Restricted Group derives its revenue from a single stream of revenue and from the transfer of electricity over time for each unit of electricity sold.

Other income

Interest income on fixed deposits

Interast income on income tax refund

Interest income on loan to related parties

Unwinding of discount on deposits

Amortisation of deferred government grant (Refer nota 39)
Amortisation of deferred revenue (Refer note 40)
Balancas and Provision written back

Insurance claim

Miscelianeous income

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Canfribution to provident and other funds {Refer note 32)
Gratuity expense (Refer note 32)

Staff weifare expenses

Finance cost

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest on debts and borrowings banks and financial institutions
Interest on 4.25% Senior secured notes
Interest on loan from related parties (Refer note 31)
Interest on Optional Cumulative Convertible Debenture (refer note 31)
Interest on compulsory convertible debenture {refer note 31}
Interest an non convertible debenture

Other finance cosls

For the year ended
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
813 27.28
11.42 0.48
142 61 93.96
2.50 364
573 2472
2679 -
13.12 21.05
67.89 4292
13.51 6,43
281.70 220.43
For the year ended
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
126.70 94 56
545 3.73
437 326
0.07 0.09
136.59 101.63
For the year ended
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
184 49 2.379.37
2.156.20 19.94
11.08 257.86
141,42 16544
14282 62.36
561 108 48
2384 418.44
2,665.57 3,409.89
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25

25A

Depreciation and amortisation expense®

Depreciation of tangible assets

Depreciation of right of use asset

Amortisation of intangible assets

*Refer note 2.3(i) for change in useful life of wind and solar power plants

Impairment of Assets

For the year ended
As at As at

— Margh 31,2022  March 31,2021

1.057.41 1.376.30
11.86 16.53
7.98 7.98

1,077.25 1,400.81_

For the year ended
As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Impairment of Capital work-in-progress (refer note 4)

26 Other expenses

Operation and maintenance

Legal and professional expense
Exchange fluctuaution expense (net)
Balances written-off

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Power and fuel

Management Fees (refer note 21)
Insurance

Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Liguidated Damage Charges

Repair and maintenance

Director sitting fees

Deviation Settlement Charges
Miscellanecus expenses

* Includes aperation and maintenance equalisation reserve recognised over life of the Operation & maintenance contract

27 Tax expense

Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods
Deferred tax

28 Other Comprehensive Income

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Income Tax Effect on Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
Effective Partion of Cash Flow Hedges (net of tax)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

29 Earninas per Share

58.96

56,96

For the year ended

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

432 49 426.85
&7.10 48.92
1.72 oo
- 3.06
22.49 1879
1041 68.79
313 66,22
166.32 158.40
58.66 5910
102.82 43.05
= 208,70
16.19 16.54
0.26 0.50
28.47 35,08
2002 23.37
956.96 1,113.38
31.33 20.38
For the year ended
As at As at
—March 31,2022  March 31,2021
301.43 10.07
(0.54) 010
400.90 (168.52)
701.79 l"!59.35!
For the year ended
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
8.04 062
2.25) {0.10)
(485.93) -
o082 1.63
(479.32) 2.05_

The special purpose Combined Financial Statements do not represent legal structure and are aggregated for a specific purpose, Accordingly, Earnings per Share (EPS)

on aggregated number of shares has not been disclosed

This space has been left intentionatly
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30 Deferred Tax

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 as follows:

Considering, Restricted Group comprises of nine entities out of which eight entities are located in India. Further, all the business operations are carried out in these
eight Indian entities. Consequently, we have presented ETR as per the tax rate applicable in Indian Jurisdiction and impact of difference in tax rate is shown as
Effect of tax rate differences due to entity operating in other jurisdictions”.

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accounting profit before tax 424.02 {1,104.25)
Applicable tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expense 110.25 (287.11)
Difference in tax Rates (3.29) (5.88)
Effect of tax rate differences due to entity operating in other jurisdictions (25.87) 0.29
MNon-deductible expenses for tax purposes® 436.95 19.26
Effect on tax due to reassessment of temporary differences reversing under tax holiday period (refer note a below) 93.40 (0.28)
Deferred tax assels (created)ireversed on businass (108.79) 101.74
losses (refer note c below)
Tax on deemed dividend 4195 -
Withholding tax on interest income lapsed 138.67 -
Others 18.52 12.64
Income tax charged to Special Purpose Combined Statement of Profit & Loss 701.79 (159.35)

*Primarily represent disallowance under section 94B of Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of interest on Onshore ECB Bond.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they arise in the same taxing jurisdiction with a legal right to offset but not otherwise. Accordingly the net
deferred tax (assets)liability has been disclosed in the Balance Sheet as follows |

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets 411797 50091
Deferred tax liabilities (947.64) (570.25)
Net Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (535.87) {69.34)

b) Component of Deferred tax Assets/liabilities (net):

As on March 31, 2022

Significant components of deferred tax Opening Balance as Charged / (credited) Charged / Charged / Closing Balance as
asset/(liabilities) on April 01, 2021 to Statementof  (credited) to  (credited) directly on March 31, 2022
profitand loss  OCI in Equity
Carry forward tax loss and Unabsorbed depreciation 973.56 79.38 - - 894.18
Higher depreciation and amortization for tax purposes (1,406.55) 544.10 " - {1,950.65)
Effective interest rate adjustments for borrowings 2.73 1.82 - “ 0.91
Equity component of compound financial instruments 56.01 8.75 - - 46.26
Deferred Government Grant 21.66 (3.97) - - 2563
Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement 223.99 (125.86) - - 349.85
(refer note (b) below)
Gainl(loss) on mark to market of derivative instrument - - - 63.38 {63.38)
Others 59.26 (104.32) 225 - 161.33

Total (69.34) 400.90 225 63.38 (535.87)
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As at March 31, 2021

Significant components of deferred tax Opening Balance as Charged / (credited) Charged / Charged / Closing Balance as
asset/(liabilities) on April 01, 2020 to Statement of  (credited) to  (credited) directly on March 31, 2021
profit and loss  OCI in Equity
Carry forward tax loss and Unabsorbed depreciation 559.50 (414.08) - - 873.56
Higher depreciation and amortization for tax purposes (1,160.23) 246.32 - - (1,406.55)
Effective interest rate adjustments for borrowings (5.08) (7.81) - = 2.73
Equity component of compound financial instruments 137.56 19.60 - 61.95 56.01
Deferred Government Grant 37.25 15.59 - - 21.66
Minimum alternative tax credit entittement 218.25 (7.74) - - 223,99
(refer note (b) below)
Lease liability 13.35 13.35 - = -
Right of use asset (12.77) 12.77) - - -
Others 37.36 (22.00) 0.10 - 59.26
Total (176.82) (169.52) 0.10 61.95 (69.34)

a) In respect of entities covered under tax holiday period as specified under section 80 1A of Income tax Act, 1961, entities reassess its projected taxable profits
during the tax holiday period based on current year actual performance and other external factars impacting the projected project performance on periodic basis,
Based on revised projections, entities have reassessed its deferred tax and and its impact thereon,

{b) The Indian entities of Restricted Group has recognized an asset of Rs 249.85 million (March 31, 2021: Rs 223.99 million) as "MAT credit entitlement” . It
represents that portion of MAT liability which can be set off in subsequent years based on provisions of Income Tax Act 1961. The management based on future
profitability projections, is of the view that there would be sufficient taxable income in foreseeable future, which will enable the entities to utilize MAT credit assets.

(€) As at March 31, 2022, one of the restricted group entity namely Clean Solar Pwer (Gulbarga) Private Limited has carry forward tax losses of Rs. 385.85 million
(expiring Rs. 59.23 million in financial year 2027-28, Rs. 326.42 million in financial year 2028-28) on which the Company has recognized deferred tax asset of Rs.
97.07 million (which was earlier reversed in the year ended March 31, 2021) primarily due to availability of projected taxable profits as a result of tax impact of
Onshore ECB bonds issued in the current year

This space has been left intentionally
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31 Related Party T i
a) List of related parties

|Nama of Related Party

Nature of relationship

BM Munjal Energies Private Limited

Uttimate holding company

Hero Future Energies Private Limited

Intermediate holding company

Hero Future Energies Asia Ple. Lid Holding company
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited Holding company
Hero Wind Energy Private Limited Helding company
Clean Wind Power {(Anantapur) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Clean Wind Power (Pratapgarh) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Clean Wind Power (Devgarh) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Clean Wind Power (Manvi) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Clean Solar Power (Tumkur) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary

Clean Solar Power (Chitradurga) Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

Clean Solar Power {Jaipur) Private Limited

Feliow subsidiary

LN.J Power Ventures Limited

Fellow subsidiary

Waaneep Solar Private Limiled

Fellow subsidiary

Wayu Urja Bharat Private Limited

Fallow subsidiary

Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

Hero Future Energies Limited Employees Group Gratuity Trust

Enterprises over which key management personnel and their
|relatives able to control

heha Sethi

Company Secretary

Company Secretary

Lipsy Gupta (resigned w e f March 24, 2022)
Rahul Kumar (appointed w.ef March 17,2020

Company Secretary

Ramswarup Vil

Sanjeev Kumar

Nalsor Mandela {appointed w.e f. August 20, 2020)

Chief Finance Officer
Ankur Sharma (resigned w.e f April 23, 2021) Company Seeretary
Aditya Kumar {appointed we.f June 10. 2021) Company Secretary
Pulkit (appointed w e f October 1, 2018} Company Secretary
Tesna sharma (appointed w.e.f, August 17, 2020) Company Secretary
Independent Director

Cornpany Secretary

Ashish Kumar Frisnds Independent Director
b Transactions with related parties
Name of Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Hero Future Energies Private Limited Intermediate holding Management & developrent fees 5873 4088
012 025
Hero Future Energies Asia Pte. Ltd - 5365
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited Holding company - 600.00
Issue of CCD - 1.349.60
Loan taken “ -
Loan repaid 3260 2.420.26 |
035 3.09
651.82 842 61
Interest receved on Loan 107.75 21523
Interest on Compulsory Convertible Debentures 181.56 109.50
31.59 3311
466 7610
7982 76.01
128.97 10816
Hero Wind Energy Private Limited Holding company Proceed from loan &7.08 155.00
Repayment of loan 1,338.08 80.00
Development, O&M and management fees 311.20 301.29
Interest payable on loan 1074 113.50
Expenses incurred on entity's behalf 301 0.39
Expenses incurred on thelr behalf 064 391
Interest on Optional Convertible Cumulative Debentures 140.68 132.33
Loan given 181.20 -
Interest received on Loan 34.86 19.99
Clean Wind Power (Anantapur) Private Limited | Fellow Subsidiary Expenses inctirred on their behalf 027 -
Clean Wind Power (Pratapgart} Private Limited  |Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurred on entity's behaif a.00 0.05
Clean Solar Pawer (Chitradurga) Private Limited | Feliow Subsidiary Expensas incurred on entity's behalf 0.00 015
Waaneep Solar Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurred on entity's behalf - 085
Expensas incurred on their behall 091 -
Ciean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited  |Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurred on entity's behalf - 0.03
LMJ Power Ventures Limited Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurred by us - 0.02
Expenses incurred on entity's behalf P E
Wayu Urja Bharat Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurred on entity's behalf - 0.04
Expenses incurred on their behalf 0.08 011
Clean Wind Power (Devgarh) Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurred on entity's behalf 008 -
Expenses incurred by us - 0.05
Clean Wind Power (Manwi) Private Limited Feliow Subsidiary Expenses incurrad on their behaif 0.00
Clean Solar Power (Jaipur) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary Expenses incurred on entity's behalf = -
Purchase of solar module - -
Clean Solar Power (Tumbkur) Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Expenses incurrad on entity's behalf 081 0.45
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¢) Closing Balance of related parties

Particulars

Name of Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Hero Future Energies Private Limited (Fommerly  [Intermediate holding Development fees payable - 88.97
Clean solar Powar{Hiriyur) Private Limited) company Management fees payable - 3925
[Acvance genor Venagerment s pajable 017
Medule procurement payable - 3.15
Cther payable = 7.74
Cther receivable 254 278
Receivable on account of sale of goods 0.51 051
Other payable T80 0.02
Hero Future Energies Asig Pte. Ltd Helding company Other payables 0.20 53862
Hero Solar Energy Private Limited Entity under common Loan payable 60.00 92 60
control Interast payable 132.06 605,91
Payable on account of debentures 241960 241960
Payable on account of Opticnal Convertible Cumulative 24500 345,00
Debentures
Payable on account of interest an Optional Convertible 31.21 127 58
tive Debentures
Equity share capital 1,260.00
Management fees 0.01 131.43
Development fee payable - 186,61
Cperational & maintenance fee payable - 36.48
Other payables 368 16.02
Module procurement payable 0.53 124 89
|Receivable for Sale of solar module 3.39 3.39
|Recelvable on account of loan 1.331.82 580.00
|Interest receivable 226 87 132.21
Other Payable 1.00 -
Hero Wind Energy Private Limited Holding company Payable on account of loan 32.84 1,283 83
Interest accrued but not due 132.82 97518
Payable on account of business support services 0.23 2763
Payable on account of Opticnally Convertible Cumulative 1,458.38 1,458.38
Debentures
Equity share capital - -
Advance given on account of Management Fees and Operation 24.49
and Maintenance services
Management fee and Operalional & maintenance fee payable 234 9588
Expenses incurred - -
Loan receivable 381.20 200,00
Interest on loan receivable 68.34 3B.97
Other receivable 012 0.20
Lther payables 338 3.08
Hero Future Energles Limited Employees Group |Enterprises over which key|Contribution towards gratuity fund 1057 a79
Gratuity Trust management  personnel
and their relatives able to
control
Clean Wind Power {Devgarh) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary [Receivable for Sale of goods 0.53 0.53
Other Payabie 0.01
Cther receivable 328.54 328,59
Clean Solar Power (Chitradurga) Private Limited |Fellow subsidiary Other payables 0.02 002
Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited  |Feliow subsidiary Other payable 0.17 0.17
Clean Solar Power (Jaipur) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary Purchase of solar module 48.40 48.40
Other payables 010 010
LN Power Ventures Limited Fallow subsidiary Other receivable 0.14 0.14
Clean Wind Power (Bhavnagar) Private Limited  |Fellow subsidiary Cther payable - 617
Waaneep Sclar Private Limited Feliow subsidiary Other payable 0.03 088
Clean Wind Power (Pratapgarh) Private Limited |Feliow Subsidiary Other receivable 0.05 005
Clean Wind Power (Manvi) Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Other recaivable 0.00
Other payable 0.23
Clean Wind Power {Anantapur) Private Limited  |Fellow Subsidiary Other receivable 027
Vayu Urja Bharat Private Limited Fellow subsidiary |Other payables 1.16 128
Other receivable - -
Clean Solar Power (Tumkur) Private Limited Fellow subsidiary Other payables 1.66 0.85
) Compensation of Key management personnel of the Restricted Group
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
4.53

Payment to Key management personnet*

499

Total [ paid to Key g personnel

4.99

4.53

* Remuneration to the Key managerial personnel does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave encashment, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Restricted

Group as whole.




Notes to Special P! Combined Fi lal for the vear ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in indian Rupees (in million), unless otherwise stated)

|
\ Restricted Group
|

e) Other transactions with Related Party

In case of Clean Wind Power (Satara) Private Limited

i) Bursuant to scheme of amalgamation, Stock option holders under erstwhile Hero Future Energies Private Limited (now amalgamated) are entiled to stock optiens in Hero Future
Energies Private Limited. Hero Future Energies Private Limited has not completed the process for the adoption of the new employee stock option plan

During the year no share options are granted to any employees (March 31, 2021 Nil ) and no further awards are planned. Management has assessed that it is not probable that total
settiements will exceed the already provisioned Rs. 1.64 million and therefore no further expense has been recognised for the year ended March 31, 2022

(i} Hero Future Energy Private Limited has given the guarantee in the favour of Axis Trustee Services Limited towards bord related obligations and working capital obligations. Refer
note 15 for details.

) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The transaction with related parties are made on terms equivalent o those that prevaitin arm's length transaction The income expense from sale/Purchase from related parties are madae

on armm's length basis outstanding balancas at the year end are unsecured and interest free.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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32 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined contribution plans

The Restricted Group makes contribution towards provident fund! pension fund. Under the scheme, the Restricted Group is required 1o contrbute a specified
percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to the defined contribution scheme. The Restricted Group has recognized Rs. 5.45 million
(March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.37 million) during the year as expensa towards confribution to the plan

Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provident fund 5.45 373
Total 5.45 3.73

b} Defined benefit plans

In accordance with Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits”, an actuarial valuation on the basis of "Projected Unit Credit Method” was carried out, through which the
Restricted Group is able to determine the present value of obligations. "Prajected Unit Credit Methad" recegnizes each year of service as giving rise to additional
unit of empl benefit entith t and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation,

i) Gratuity scheme
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.

c) The g tables ize the I of net benefit ex; gnised in the St of profit and loss and the funded status and
t gnised in the bal sheet for the defined benefit plan
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) {Funded}
Change in benefit obligation
1 Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 10.72 7.35
2 Add: Current service cost 4.26 333
3 Add: Past service cost - 0.07
4  Add Interest cost 07s 0.44
5 Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss (7.95) 0.05
6 Less Benefits paid < 5
7 Add: Acguisition Adjustment 2 0.43
8 Less: Benefits paid (1.33) {0.95)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 6.45 10.72
d} The foll g tables ise the components of net benefit ex; gnised in the 5t of profit or loss and the funded status and
it: gnised in the bal sheet for the respective plans:
Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) {Funded)
Cost for the year included under employee benefit
Add: Current service cost 426 333
Add: Past service cost - 0.07
Add: Interest cost 0.75 0.44
Less: Investment Income (D.64) (0.58)
Net cost 4.37 3.26
e} Changes In the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
Fair value of plan assets at the beainning 9.80 8.55
Add: Investment income 064 0.58
Add: Expected refurn on plan assets .08 0.67
Add: Actuarial gains / (losses) on the plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end 10.52 9.80
f) Detail of actuarial gainfloss recognised in OCI is as follows:
Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) {Fundad)
1 Actuarial gain / {loss) for the year - ebligation 7.95 {0.05)
2 Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year - plan assets 008 .67
3 Total gain / (loss) for the year 8.04 0.62
4 Actuanal gain / (loss) recognised in the year 8.04 o0g2
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g} Principal al pti at the bal sheet date are as follows:

Economic assumptions
1 Discount rate
2 Rate of increase in compensation levels

Demographic assumptions
1 Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)
2 Retirement Age (vears)

A Mortality Table

Withdrawal Rate
1 Ages up to 30 Years
2 Ages from 31-44
3 Above 44 years

Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) {Funded)
6,90% 5,85%
10% 14%
23.29-30.86 25.59-31.43
£0.00 60.00
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality
(2012-14) (modified)  {2012-14) {modified)
ultimate uitimate
5.44% 3.24%
14.29% 10.05%
1.02% 1.94%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial vakiation, take account of inflation, seniority, pramotion and ather relevant factors, such as

supply and demand in the employment market

h) Net (assets) / liabilities recognized in the Sheet and exp fjust ts on

Present value of obligation
Less: Fair value of plan assets
el {assets) / liability

i} A guantitative sensitivity analysis for sianificant assumption as is as shown below:

A. Discount rate

Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Discount Rate

Effect on DBO due 10 1% decrease in Discount Rate

B. Salary escalation rate

Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate
C. Withdrawal Rate

Effect on DBO due to 50% increase in Withdrawal Rate
Effect on DBO due to 50% decrease in Withdrawal Rate

D. Mortality Rate

Effect on DBO due to 50% increase in Mortality Rate
Effect on DBO due to 50% decrease in Mortality Rale

i} Maturitv profile of defined benefit oblination is as f

1 year

210 5 years

Bto 10 years

More than 10 years

rial gain [ {loss) for benefit obligation and plan

Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) (Funded)
645 10.71
{10.52) {9.78)
(4.07) 093
Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) (Funded)
3.39) {4.39)
420 6.08
436 5.01
(2.47) (4.43)
{3.40) (3.96)
4.48 684
(2.73) (5.23)
273 526
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded) _
069 036
256 178
247 256
14.70 34.79
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33 Capital Management

For the purpose of Restricted Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and equity reserves aftributable to the equity holders of the
parent. The primary objective of the Restricted Group's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Restricted Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Restricted Group may return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Restricted Group
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The net debt of the Restricted Group includes interest bearing
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings (including current maturities of long term borrowings) (Refer to note 15) 30,596.03 53,371.52
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 7) 1,439.18 4,723.96
Net debt 29,156.85 48,647.56
Equity share capital (Refer to note 13) 3,688.28 3,634.10
Other equity (Refer to note 14) (1,539.69) (728.41)
Total Capital 2,148.59 2,905.69
Capital and net debt 31,305.44 51,553.25
Gearing ratio 93.14% 94.36%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Restricted Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There is no breach covenant except as mentioned in note 15
‘Borrowings'.
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34 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

a. Commitments

(i) The various entities of the Restricted Group have entered in to fong term Power Purchase Agreements (PPA’) ranging from 13 to 25 years from the respective
date of ¢ issioning with various Discoms and private parties wherein the said entities have committed to sell and Discoms & private parties have committed to
purchase entire generation from installed capacity.

b. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bank guarantee outstanding - 212
Viability Gap Funding 468.10 442.80
Total 468.10 444.92

Bank guarantees have been provided as a security to rmake payments to third parties in the event that the Restricted Group does not perform what is expected of it
under the terms of any related contracts or commercial arrangements.

Viability gap funding represents the amount already received which the government agencies can demand repayment of in case the project fails to generate power
for & long period of time,

As per Subclause (1) and (ii) of clause 'a’ of Article 4.2 read with Article 4.1 of VGF Securitization Agreement dated March 28, 2014 made between the 'Clean Solar
Power (Dhar) Private Limited and Solar Energy Corporation of India (hereinafter referred to as "SECI"), the enlity is liable to refund the amount of VGF received to
SECIif it commits certain defaulls as specified in VGF Agreement.

c. Other Legal Proceedinas
General

I. Land related

There are approximately 3 land cases filed by third parties against one of the Restricied Group entity namely Clean Solar Power (Gulbarga) Private Lirnited or vice
versa on various issues including (ij sale of their ancestral land by relatives/family members, without obtaining their consents, to the said entity (i)
encroachment/erection of towers by the said entity on their land {iii) the reduction of land value and damage to crops due to the installation of power t ission
lines over their land (Iv) the receipt of inadequale sales consideration from subsidiaries for the sale of their land. The said entity is contesting all such cases and
based on advice from legal counsel, management believes that they have a good case on merits. The Restricted Group has concluded that it is only possible, but
not probable that the actions of the various third parties will succeed. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements. Although carrying
value of these parcels of land are not individually or collectively material, the potential impact on the future success or viahility of the relevant projects could be
material to the entity. Given the uncertainty surrounding the various claims against the entity, it is also not practicable to quantify the potential future effect on
eamings, operations, cash flow or financial condition of the entity.

II. Others

In case of ane of the Restricted Group entity namely, Bhilwara Green Energy Limited has entered into Operation & Maintenance ('O&M') agreement with ReGen
Infrastructure and Services Private Limited ('ReGen') dated September 18, 2015. Vide order dated February 19, 2020, National entity Law Tribunal has ordered the
commencement of corporate insolvency resolution process of the ReGen and appointed Interim Resolution Professionals (IRP'). Consequent to financial position
of ReGen, to ensure smooth functioning of the plant, the said entity as per approval from ReGen and IRP, paid advance to material/ service vendors of ReGen for
replacement/repairs of Generators and other related expenses. As at March 31, 2022, the net outstanding advance (net of amount payable towards O&M services
rendered till 31 March 31, 2022 is Bs. 171.54 million (As at March 31, 2021: Rs, B7.40 million) which will either be refunded or adjusted against future services.
Basis above facts, historical and continuing arrangement for O&M services and adjustment of advances against services received, transactions of ReGen with
fellow subsidiaries, and considering that ReGen is continuing as O&M vendor and will continue to provide services, the Management of the Restricted Group
believes that the advance amount s fully recoverable either in cash or through services received from the Re(en, however, as a prudence the management of the
entity has provided the amount of provision of Rs, 132 million (As at March 31, 2021: Rs. 35 million) against said advance in the financial statement.

Additionally, the entity has filed claim for liquidity damages as per contractual terms but following conservative principles, it has not recognized as net income (net of
provision) in these financial statement.
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35 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Restricted Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts
that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

a) Fair value of financial assets:

Carrying values Fair values
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Security deposits (Refer to note 9) 41,10 39.54 41,10 39.54
Trade receivables (Refer to note 8) 2,731.83 2,657.27 2,731.83 265727
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 7) 1,439.18 4,723.96 1,439.18 4,723.96
Other bank balances (Refer to note 8) 8.10 22,592.89 8.10 22,592.89
Other financial assets (Refer to note §) 2.827.37 1,516.72 2,827.37 1.516.72

7,047.68 31,530.38 7.047.68 31,530.38
b) Fair value of financial liabilities:

Carrying values Fair values

As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial llabilities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Derivative Liability designated as hedge 138.95 - 138.95 -
Total A 138.95 - 138.95 -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings (Refer to note 15) 30,596.03 53,371.52 3063892 53,421.47
Trade payables (Refer note 16) 237.00 1,020.85 237.00 1,020.85
Other financial liabilities {Refer to note 17) 542.21 2,934 58 403.26 2,934 58
Total B 31,375.24 57,326.95 31,280.18 57,376.90
Total (A+B) 31,514.19 57,326.95 3141813 57,376.90

Management has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables, Interest accrued on borrowings and current
maturities of fong term borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Discount rate used in determining fair value

The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremental borrowing rate of borrower which in case of financial
liabilities is average market cost of borrowings of the Restricted Group and in case of financial asset is the average market rate of similar credit rated instrument. The
Restricted Group maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial lisbilities using the best and most relevant data available,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current fransaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

a) Fair values of the Restricted Group's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the rate as at the
end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2022 was assessed to be insignificant,

b} Fair value for security deposits (other than perpetual security deposits) has been presented based on the discounting factor as at the reporting date. Fair value for
all other non-current assets and liabilities is equivalent to the amortised cost, interest rate on them is equivalent to the market rate of interest.

¢) For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

d} The Company has hedged foreign currency exposure risk related to investments in restricted group entities denominated in INR using derivative financial
instruments, Foreign currency exposure related to the principal cashflows is hedged using call spread options & coupon cash-flows is using cross currency swaps.
These were entered into with various counterparties, principally financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. For the purpose of determining the fair value
of derivative financial instruments, the company uses swap pricing model based on present value calculations and option pricing model based on principles of black
Scholes model. These models incorporate various market observable such as foreign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves of the respective
currencies, implied volatility of respective currencies etc. prevailing as of valuation date.
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36

Fair value hierarchy

Al financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Restricted Group's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Security deposits (Refer to note 9)

Trade receivables (Refer to note 6)

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer to note 7)
Other bank balances (Refer to note 8)
Other financial assets (Refer to note 9)

Total

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Derivative Liability designated as hedge

Total A

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Borrowings (Refer to note 15}
Trade payables (Refer note 16)
Other financial liabilities (Refer to note 17)

Total B
Total (A+B)

Level Classification

Level 2
Level 2
Level 2
Level 2
Level 2

Level Classification

Level 2

Level 2
Level 2
Level 2

As at
March 31, 2022

As At
March 31, 2021

41.10 39.54
2.731.93 2,657.27
1.439.18 4,723.86

8.10 22,592.89
2.827.37 1,516.72
7,047.68 31,530.38

As at
March 31, 2022

As At
March 31, 2021

138.95 -
138.95 ud
30,639.92 53,421.47
237.00 1,020.85
403.26 2,934 58
31,280.18 57,376.90
31,419.13 57,376.90

Management has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables, Interest accrued on borrowings and current
maturities of long term borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
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37 Financial risk management objectives and policies

0]

The Restricted Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, borrowings, current maturity of borrowings, interest accrued and capital
creditors. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Restricted Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations.

The Restricted Group's principal financial assets includes Investment in mutual funds, security deposits, deposit with original maturity of 12 months, trade
receivables, cash and cash and interest accrued thereon.

The Restricted Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Restricted Group's senior level management of these risks and is supported by
Treasury depariment that advises on the appropriate financial risk govemance framework.

All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by the teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. In order to minimise
any adverse affects on the financial perfermance of the Restricted Group, the Restricted Group may use foreign forward contracts including currency rate swaps to
hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Restricted Group's policies approved by the board of directors,
which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of financial derivatives, and the investments of excess liquidity.
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. Derivaives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and
not for trading and speculative purposes.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interes! rate risk, currency risk and other price risk; such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
barrowings, short term deposits and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,
The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the
proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant ,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Restricted
Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Restricted Group to interest rate rigk.

Long term borrowings primarily consists of US dollar denominated loan with fixed interest rate. The said loan is carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest
rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held
constant, the Restricted Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/decrease in  Effect on profit
basis points before tax
March 31, 2022 +50 -
-50 %
March 31, 2021 +50 (179.04)
-50 179.04

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly
higher volatility than in prior years.

Foreign currency risk

Faoreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Restricted
Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Restricted Group's financing activities,

The Company hedged the foreign currency exposure risk related to certain investments in India restricted group entities through call spread option with cross
currency swap for coupon payments.

As the Company has entered into foreign exchange derivative contract to mitigate the foreign exchange fluctuation risk, these derivatives act as economic hedges
and will offset the impact of any fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Restricted
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Restricted Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored,

The Restricted Group has state utilitiesigovernment entities as it's customers with high credit werthiness, therefore, the Restricted Group does not see any risk
related to credit. The credit quality of the customers cther than state utilities/government entities is evaluated based on their credit ratings and other publicly
available data.

Refer note 4 for the ageing analysis of trade receivables as at respective reporting dates.
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i)

Financial Instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Restricted Group's treasury department in accordance with the Restricted Group’s
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Restricted Group's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Restricted Group's
finance committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make

payments,

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Restricted Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable

losses.
The Restricted Group's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Restricted Group closely

rmonitars its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system, It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised
cost,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Restricted Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undi ted pay t

As at March 31, 2022 On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Borrowings™ # 599.56 305.58 2.201.74 2942187 3,368 45 35,897.20
Trade payables - 146 235.54 - - 237.00
Other financial liabilities 209.05 - 472,11 138.95 - 820.11
Total 808.61 307.04 2,909.39 29,560.82 3,368.45 36,954.31

As at March 31, 2021 On demand Less than 3 months 3 fo 12 months 1 to 5 years > & years Total
Borrowings* # 877.83 2347520 1,095.91 10,535.74 23,798.81 59,783.49
Trade payables - 437 1,016.48 - - 1,020.85
Other financial liabilities Bd1.64 301.49 1,791.45 - - 2,934.58
Total 1,719.47 23,781.06 3,903.84 10,535.74 23,798.81 63,738.92

* refer note 15
# Itincludes contractual interest payment based on interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
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39

Segment Note

The Restricted Group is engaged in a single segment i.e., the business of "generation and sale of power" from where it is eaming its revenue and incurring expense,
The operating results are regularly reviewed and performance is assessed by its Chief Operating Declsion Maker (CODM) including CEO, CFO and the functional
heads. All the Restricted Group's resources are dedicated to this single segment and all the discrete financial information is available for this segment.

The Restricted Group operates within India and does not have operations in economic environments with different risks and returns.

Accounting of Viability Gap Funding {government grant)

In respect of one of the Restricted Group namely Clean Solar Power (Dhar) Private Limited, the said entity has entered into Viability Gap Funding (VGF)
securitization agreement with Solar Energy Corporation of India ("SECI") for creating a charge on project assets based on which the said entity is eligible to receive
VGF support amounting to Rs 492.00 million.

As per the terms of the agreement, VGF for 30MW plant shall be released in two instalments: first instalment of 50% of VGF shall be released at a date not earlier
than three months from scheduled commissioning date and balance 50% to be received in 5 equal instalment over the next 5 years, subject to plant meeting the
generation requirement specified in the VGF Securitization Agreement.

WGF received s treated as deferred revenue and is being amortized over the useful life of the assets in the same praportion in which depreciation on related assets
is charged to statemnent of profit and loss. Accordingly, the Restricted Group has recorded an amount of Rs. 26.79 million {March 31, 2021 Rs. 24.72 million) as
Other income, which is recorded under Note 22 of the financial statements, while an amount of Rs. 328.99 million (March 31, 2021 Rs. 330.47 million) has been
recorded as "Deferred government grant” under Note 18 of the financial statements.

Government grants have been received for assistance in setting up the of 30 MW solar plant. There are no unfulfilled conditions attached to these grants.

40 Central Government introduced new Indirect Tax regime “Goods and Services Tax Act’ (GST) on July 1, 2017 which resulted in an increase in NON-recurring

4

expenditure on the project asset in one of the indian restricted entity namely Clean Solar Power (Gulbarga) Private Limited. Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC') vide order dated March 26, 2020 has directed SECI to pay the additional cost incurred by the entity on account of change in law subject to
certain conditions. SEC| vide letters dated December 31, 2021 has agreed to refund the said amount of 489.80 million, Out of 489,80 million, 134,13 million was paid
upfront and for rest of the amount in monthly annuity of 4.96 million.

In accordance with accounting policy of the entity, such additional cost incurred in relation to GST has been capitalized under Property, plant and equipment and
income is being recognised over the term of PPA from the date when the entity has received first instalment of refund.

Accordingly, the entity has recorded an amount of Rs. 5.73 million as other income, which is recorded under Note 22 of the financial staternents, while an amount of

Rs. 484.07 million has been recorded as “Deferred income” under Note 18 of the financial statements. The balance of GST receivable as on March 31, 2022 is Rs,
349.96 million has been recorded as "Other financial asset” under Note 9 of the financial statements.

Disclosure pursuant to amendment to Ind AS 7 (Cash flow statement):

Non-cash transactions
Opening balance Closing balance
Particulars (April 01, 2021) Cash flows | Processing | Interest |Vacated Bthere (March 31, 2022)
cost accretion | Lease

Term loans from Financial Institution & Banks 21,337.28 121,337.28) - - - = -
4.25% Senior secured notes 26,292.04 (544.73) 71.14 812.51 26,630.96

Cash credit facilities 111.50 {111.50) - = - - -
Loan from Related Party 1,316.42 (1,283.58) - - - 32,84

Non-Convertible Debentures 798.50 (798.50) - 5 = ¥ o
Compulsery Convertible Debentures 1,571.63 - - (38.74) . - 1.532.89
Optional Convertible Debentures 1,799.64 - - 0.14 - - 1,799.78
Total 53,227.01 (24,075.59) 71.14 (38.60) - 812.51 29,896.47

Non-cash transactions
Opening balance Closing balance
Parti
articulars (April 01, 2020) Cash flows | Processing Im.ere_st New Gthars (March 31, 2021)
cost accretion | Leases
Term loans from Banks & Financial Institutions 22,213.34 (680.19) (303.62) - - 107.76 21,337.28
4.25% Senior secured notes - 26,566.30 1.11 (275.38) 26,292.04
h credit facilities . 41.50 - - - -

Cas 70.00 1 111.50
Loan from Related Party 2,819.08 {1,502.66) - = " 1,316.42
Nen-Convertible Debentures 974.62 (177.44) 1.32 = N L 798.50
Buyer's credit 0.00 e 3 % z = 000
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 515.31 1,349.60 . (47.13) - (246.15) 1,571.63
Optionally convertible cumulative debentures 1,798.19 - 0.03 0.06 - 0.36 1,795.64
Lease Liabilities €0.80 (12.13) - 2.71 (51.38) - 0.00
Total 28,452.34 25,584.98 (301.16) (44.36)] {51.38) (413.41) 53,227.01

# During the year, the Company has issued equity shares 729,458 (March 31, 2021 : 17,921) equivalent to Rs. 54,18 million (March 31, 2021 : Rs. 1.34 million) to
Hero Future Energies Asia Pte Ltd to discharge the liability in respect of expenditure incurred by Hero Future Energies Asia Pte Ltd on behalf of the Company.

This space has been left intentionally
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Notes to Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees (in_million}), uni otherwise stated)
42 During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company hedged the foreign currency exposure risk related to certain investments in Indian Restricted Group entities
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denominated in foreign cumrency through call spread option with cross curency swap for coupon payments. The foreign currency forward contracts and options
were not entered for trading or speculative purposes,

The Company documented each hedging relationship and assessed its inflial effectiveniess on inception date and the subsequent effectiveness was tested on each
reporting date using dollar offset method. When the relationship between the hedged items and hedging Instrument is effective at achieving offsetting changes in
cashflows altributable to the hedged risk, the Company records in other comprehensive income the entire change in fair value of the designated hedging instrument
that Is included in the assessment of hedge effecliveness. The gain or loss on the hedge contracts shall be reclassified to interest expense when the coupon
payments and principal repayments are made on the related investments. The hedge contracts were effective as of March 31, 2022.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the terms of the derivative contracts match the terms of the expected
highly probable forecast transactions (i.e.. notional amount and expected payment date}, The Company has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging
relationships-as the underlying risk of the derivative contracts are identical to the hedged risk components. To test the hedge effectiveness, the Company uses the
hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the fair valug of the hedging instruments against the changes in fair value of the hedged items
attributable to the hedged risks. The hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

{i} Differences in the timing of the cash flows of the hedged items and the hedging instruments

(ii) Different indexes (and accordingly different curves) linked to the hedged risk of the hedged items and hedging instruments

(iii) The counterparties’ credit risk differently impacting the fair value movements of the hedging instruments and hedged items

The Restricted Group recorded an expense of Rs, 827 .60 million during the year ended March 31, 2022 Intrinsic value of hedging instrument is reclassified from
other comhrensive income to statement of profit and loss acount of Rs. 302.07 million offsetting restatement loss on hedged item, grouped under Foreign Exchange
Fluctuation expense {net). There is no Ineffectiveness recognised in the statment of profit or loss account.

The following table presents outstanding notional amount and balance sheet location infarmation related to foreign exchange dervative contracts as of March 31,
2022,

Foreign Currency Option Contracts

As at
March 31, 2022

Notional Amount (US§ denominated in million) 355.74
Mon-current — Other financial Liabilities (INR in million) 138.95
Cash Flow Hedging Reserve (INR in million} (218.25)
Cost of Hedging Reserve (INR in milion) (267.69)
_The Company s holding the following call spread contracts:

Particulars Less than | 1yearto § Total

_1vear year

At 31 March 2022

Call Spread contracts (highly probable forecast

transaction)

Notional amount (in USD) 2.55 47.46 5001

Average strike price (INR/USD):

Sell call B81.23 95.08

Buy Call 75.05 75.05

Notional amount (in USD) 5.12 95.15 100.26

Average strike price (INRIUSD):

Sell call 81.15 94.18

Buy Call 74.92 T4.92

Notional amount {in USD) 344 63.94 67.38

Average strike price (INR/USD):

Sell call B81.05 94.16

Buy Gall 74.60 74.60

Motional amount (in USD) 7.05 131.05 138.09

Average strike price (INR/IUSD):

Sell call B1.23 95.08

Buy Call 75.05 75.05

Going Concern

Resiricted Group Entities, namely Clean Wind Power (Piploda) Private Limited and Clean Wind Power {Bableshwar) Private Limited, the entities have incurred
Josses in the financial year, has accumulated losses as at March 31, 2022, The entities expect to have sustainable cash flows addressing any uncertainties around
the gaing concemn assumptions, this would result in the revival of the entities and recovery of its losses. Additionally, Hero Wind Energy Private Limited has also
agreed to provide such financial support as necessary enable the entities to continue its operations and to meet its liabiliies as and when due on continuing basis.
Accordingly, these financial statement has been prepared on going concem basis.
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Restricted Group

Results of Operations-Special Purpose Combined Financials
For the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Rs million, unless otherwise stated)

Operating Results
Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contract with customers increased to Rs. 4,978.69 million for the year ended March 31,
2022, from Rs. 4,759.93 million for the year ended March 31, 2021. The primary reason for increase is
on account of higher revenue generation from wind power plants owing to higher average wind speed
and increase in income from carbon credits during the current year. This increase is partially offset by
decrease in revenue generation in solar power plants due to lower average irradiance during the current
year.

Generation for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 was 960.52 GWh million units and
933.91 GWh million units respectively, representing a 2.85% increase as compared to the year ended
March 31, 2021.

Other income

Other income increased to Rs. 281.70 million for the year ended March 31, 2022, from Rs. 220.49
million for the year ended March 31, 2021, primarily due to increase in interest income on loan given
to related parties pursuant to new loans granted during the year.

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense increased to Rs. 136.59 million for the year ended March 31, 2022, from
Rs. 101.63 million for the year ended March 31, 2021, primarily due to increase in salaries, wages on
account of annual increment cycle, new hirings and impact of performance linked incentive provision
during the current year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased to Rs. 2,665.57 million for the year ended March 31, 2022, from Rs. 3,409.89
million for the year ended March 31, 2021, primarily on account of (i) decrease in other finance cost
due to loan prepayment charges for pre-closure of long term borrowings in the previous year of Rs.
345.58 million; (ii) repayment of inter-company loans taken by Indian entities of Restricted Group
which has resulted in reduction of interest expense on loan taken from related parties by Rs 246.77
million and (iii) decrease in interest on non-convertible debenture expense by Rs. 100.57 million.

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation and amortization expense was Rs. 1,077.25 million for the year ended March 31, 2022
and Rs. 1,400.81 million for the year ended March 31, 2021. This change is attributable to lower
depreciation on account of revision in useful lives of wind power plants and solar power plants from 25
years to 30 years and 35 years respectively with effect from April 01, 2021 prospectively.

Impairment of assets

Impairment during the previous year was due to impairment of capital work-in-progress in Clean Wind
Power (Satara) Private Limited.



Restricted Group

Results of Operations-Special Purpose Combined Financials
For the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in Rs million, unless otherwise stated)

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased to Rs. 956.96 million for the year ended March 31, 2022, from Rs. 1,113.38
million for the year ended March 31, 2021, primarily due to one-off liquidated damage charges of
Rs.206.70 million during the previous year, partially offset by increase in provision for doubtful debts
and advances of Rs. 59.77 million.

Tax expense

Tax expense increased to net tax expense of Rs. 701.79 million for the year ended March 31, 2022,
from a net tax credit of Rs. 159.35 million for the year ended March 31, 2021, primarily on account of
increase in current tax expense and reversal of deferred asset.

Net Profit/(loss) after tax

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the year decreased to Rs. 277.77 million for the year ended March
31, 2022, from loss of Rs. 944.90 million for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Cash Flow Discussion
Net cash flow from operating activities

In the year ended March 31, 2022, the net cash flow from operating activities was Rs. 2,201.93 million.
This net cash flow was primarily attributable to (i) operating profit before working capital changes of
Rs. 4,029.75 million during the year; (ii) decrease in working capital of Rs. 1,562.44 million and (iii)
taxes paid (net of refunds) of Rs. 265.38 million.

Operating profit before working capital changes of Rs. 4,029,75 million in the year ended March 31,
2022, was primarily attributed to (i) profit before tax of Rs. 424.02 million (ii) adjustment of finance
cost of Rs. 2,665.57 million (ii) adjustment of depreciation and amortisation expense of Rs. 1,077.25
million (iii) adjustment of provision for doubtful receivables and advances of Rs. 102.82 million and
(iv) adjustment of finance income of Rs. 162.16 million.

The changes in working capital in the year ended March 31, 2022 of Rs. 1,562.44 million, was primarily
attributed to (i) decrease in trade and other payables of Rs. 766.70 million; (ii) decrease in other financial
liabilities of Rs. 758.40 million; (iii) increase in other financial assets of Rs. 355.30 million and (iv)
increase in other assets by 116.43 million, partially offset by increase in other liabilities of Rs. 518.13
million

Net cash generated from investing activities

In the year ended March 31, 2022, the net cash flow from investing activities was Rs. 21,410.56 million,
which was primarily on account of decrease in balance with banks by Rs. 22,210.20 million pursuant
to use of proceed from 4.25% Senior Secured notes to settle borrowings of Indian entities of Restricted
Group, partially offset by increase in loan given to related parties of Rs. 833.02 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities.

In the year ended March 31, 2022, the net cash flow used in financing activities was Rs. 27,320.14
million, which primarily on account of repayments of borrowings of Indian entities of Restricted Group
by Rs 24,104.52 million (including working capital facilities) and interest payment of Rs. 3,248.46
million (including loan pre closure charges of Rs. 345.58 million).



